

KNOWLEDGE, ATTITUDE, AND PRACTICE TOWARDS BREAST CANCER, RISK FACTORS, AND SCREENING AMONG IRAQI WOMEN

Shadan SHKUR AZEEZ

2021 MASTER THESIS NURSING SCIENCE

Thesis Advisor Assoc. Prof. Dr. Işıl IŞIK ANDSOY

KNOWLEDGE, ATTITUDE, AND PRACTICE TOWARDS BREAST CANCER, RISK FACTORS, AND SCREENING AMONG IRAQI WOMEN

Shadan SHKUR AZEEZ

T.C.
Karabuk University
Institute of Graduate Programs
Department of Nursing Science
Prepared as
Master Thesis

Thesis Advisor: Assoc.Prof.Dr. Işıl IŞIK ANDSOY

> KARABUK March 2021

I certify that in my opinion the thesis submitted by Shadan SHKUR AZEEZ titled "KNOWLEDGE, ATTITUDE, AND PRACTICE TOWARDS BREAST CANCER, RISK FACTORS, AND SCREENING AMONG IRAQI WOMEN" is fully adequate in scope and in quality as a thesis for the degree of Master of Thesis.

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Işıl IŞIK ANDSOY	
Thesis Advisor, Department of Nursing Science	
This thesis is accepted by the examining committee with a unani Department of Nursing Science as a Master thesis thesis. March 29,	
Examining Committee Members (Institutions)	<u>Signature</u>
Chairman : Prof. Dr. Asiye GÜL (İKU)	
Member : Assoc. Prof. Dr. Işıl IŞIK ANDSOY(KBU)	
Member : Assist. Prof. Dr. Durdane YILMAZ GÜVEN (KBU)	
The degree of Master thesis by the thesis submitted is approved by the Board of the Institute of Graduate Programs, Karabuk University.	he Administrative
Prof. Hasan SOLMAZ	
Director of the Institute of Graduate Programs	



ABSTRACT

M. Sc. Thesis

KNOWLEDGE, ATTITUDE, AND PRACTICE TOWARDS BREAST CANCER, RISK FACTORS, AND SCREENING AMONG IRAQI WOMEN

Shadan Shkur AZEEZ

Karabuk University
Institute of Graduate Programs
The Department of Nursing Science

Thesis Advisor: Assoc. Prof. Dr. Işıl IŞIK ANDSOY March 2021, 83 pages

The aim of this descriptive, cross-sectional exploratory study is to assess Iraqi women's knowledge, attitude, practice towards breast cancer and screening, and to explain the influence of the Arab culture specific barriers on women's participation in breast cancer screening. 1066 Iraqi women have taken part in the study. Data were collected through the four instruments which determine the socio-demographic characteristics of the women survey, and the women's knowledge about breast cancer, risk factors and breast cancer screening survey, the women's breast cancer screening practices, and Arab culture-specific barriers to breast cancer questionnaire (ACSB). The data were analyzed by using descriptive statistics, and Logistic regression analysis. The statistical significance was set at 0.05 for all analyses. In the study, it was found that 46.1% of women had information about BSE and majority source about performing BSE were doctors (77.2%). 58.1% of them did not practice BSE. 43.9% of Iraqi women heard about CBE. 62.5% of them did not had CBE. 43.2% of women had

information about mammography, but 64.9% of them have not had mammography.

The majority source of information about BSE, CBE, and mammography were health

care providers. The most common reason was "not having a breast complaint" for not

doing BSE, CBE, and mammography. There was a significant relationship between

age, knowledge of BC, risk factors, BCS, and exposure barriers (OR=.545, CI=.440-

.674), environment barriers (OR=.571, CI=.464 - .703), uneasiness barriers (OR=.736,

CI=.557-.974) and BSE practice. In addition, exposure barriers (OR=.553, CI=.447-

.684), and environment barriers (OR=.585, CI=.474 -.722) were predictors to undergo

CBE. Exposure barriers (OR=.324; CI=.251-.419), environment barriers (OR=.636,

CI=.500 -.809), and uneasiness barriers (OR=.644, CI=.464-.893) were predictors for

undergoing mammography. We recommend organizing culturally sensitive

educational campaigns with the help of media, led by healthcare professionals for

spreading information about breast cancer and screening.

Key Words: Breast cancer, Breast Cancer Screening, Knowledge, Attitude,

Practice, Barriers.

Science Code: 1032.08

V

ÖZET

Yüksek Lisans Tezi

IRAKLI KADINLARIN MEME KANSERİ, RİSK FAKTÖRLERİ VE TARAMAYA YÖNELİK BİLGİ, TUTUM VE UYGULAMALARI

Shadan Shkur AZEEZ

Karabük Üniversitesi Lisansüstü Eğitim Enstitüsü Hemşirelik Anabilim Dalı

Tez Danışmanı: Doç. Dr. Işıl IŞIK ANDSOY Mart 2021, 83 sayfa

Tanımlayıcı ve kesitsel tipteki çalışmanın amacı, Iraklı kadınların meme kanseri ve taramaya yönelik bilgilerini, tutumlarını, uygulamalarını değerlendirmek ve Arap kültürüne özgü engellerin kadınların meme kanseri taramasına katılımı üzerindeki etkisini açıklamaktır. 1066 Iraklı kadın çalışmaya dahil edildi. Veriler, kadınların sosyo-demografik özelliklerini, meme kanseri, risk faktörleri ve tarama yöntemleri hakkındaki bilgilerini, kadınların tarama uygulamaları ile Arap kültürüne özgü meme kanseri önündeki engelleri (ACSB) içeren dört anket aracılığıyla toplandı. Veriler, tanımlayıcı istatistikler ve lojistik regresyon analizi kullanılarak analiz edildi. Araştırmada kadınların %46, 1'inin KKMM hakkında bilgisi olduğu, çoğunluğun KKMM yi doktordan öğrendiği (% 77, 2) bulundu. Kadınların % 58.1'i KKMM yapmamıştı. Iraklı kadınların % 43,9'u KMM'sini duymuş ancak, % 62,5'i KMM'sini yapmamıştı. Kadınların % 43, 2'si mamografi hakkında bilgi sahibi iken, % 64,9'u mamografi yaptırmamıştı. BSE, CBE ve mamografi hakkındaki bilgilerin çoğu sağlık

profesyonelleriydi. KKMM, KMM ve mamografi yapılmamasının en yaygın nedeni "meme şikayeti olmaması" idi. Yaş, meme kanseri, risk faktörleri ve taramaya yönelik bilgi durumu, maruz kalma engelleri (OR = .545, CI = .440-¬.674), çevre engelleri (OR = .571, CI = .464 - .703), huzursuzluk engelleri (OR = .736, CI = .557-.974) ile kadınların KKMM uygulaması arasında anlamlı ilişki belirlendi. Yine, maruz kalma engelleri (OR = .553, CI = .447-.684) ve çevre engelleri (OR = .585.553, CI = .474 - .722) kadınların KMM yapmamalarının, maruz kalma engelleri (OR = .324; CI = .251-.419), çevre engelleri (OR = .636, CI = .500 -.809) ve huzursuzluk engelleri (OR = .644, CI = .464 -.893) ise mamografi yaptırmanın belirleyici faktörleri idi. Meme kanseri ve taramayla ilgili bilgilerin yayılması için sağlık uzmanları tarafından yönetilen medya ile kültürel açıdan duyarlı eğitim kampanyaların düzenlenmesi önerilmektedir.

Anahtar Kelimeler: Meme kanseri, Meme Kanseri Taraması, Bilgi, Tutum,

Uygulama, Engeller.

Bilim Kodu : 1032.08

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

First of all, I would like to sincerely thank my supervisor (Assoc.prof. Dr. Işıl IŞIK ANDSOY). This research could not be completed without her continuous guidance, motivation, support, and effort. I would like to extend my gratitude to my dear and beloved husband (Aryan) who supported and encouraged me to reach this stage of my studying. I would like to thank all the Examining Committee Members (Institutions) who guided and helped me to complete this research. I deeply thank my beloved family for their support at all the stages of my studying life.

CONTENTS

	Page
APROVAL	ii
ABSTRACT	iv
ÖZET	vi
ACKNOWLEDGMENT	viii
CONTENTS	ix
LIST OF TABLES	xii
SYMBOLS AND ABBREVITIONS INDEX	xiii
PART 1	1
INTRODUCTION	1
PART 2	7
LITERATURE REVIEW	7
2.1. OVERVIEW OF BREAST CANCER	7
2.2. ETIOLOGY AND RISK FACTORS	8
2.2.1. Modifiable Risk Factors	9
2.2.2. Non-Modifiable Risk Factors	10
2.3. DIAGNOSIS METHODS	12
2.3.1. Diagnostic Mammography	13
2.3.2. Ultrasound	13
2.3.3. Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI)	13
2.3.4. Fine Needle Aspiration Biopsy (FNA)	13
2.3.5. Core Needle Biopsy (CNB)	14
2.3.6. Surgical Biopsy	14
2.4. TREATMENTS	14
2.4.1. Surgery	14
2.4.2. Radiation Therapy	15
2.4.3. Chemotherapy	15

	Page
2.4.4. Targeted Therapy	15
2.4.5. Endocrine Treatment	16
2.4.6. Immunotherapy	16
2.5. PREVENTIVE APPROACH IN BREAT CANCER	16
2.5.1. Primary Prevention	16
2.5.2. Chemoprevention	17
2.5.3. Preventive Surgery	17
2.6. BREAT CANCER SCREENING	17
2.6.1. Mammography	17
2.6.2. Clinical Breast Examination (CBE)	18
2.6.3. Breast Self –Examination (BSE)	18
2.6.4. Breast Cancer Screening in Iraq	18
2.6.5. Importance of Breast Cancer Screening and Nursing Approach	19
PART 3	22
MATERIAL AND METHODS	22
3.1. RESEARCH DESIGN	22
3.2. SETTING OF THE STUDY	22
3.3. STUDY SAMPLE	23
3.4. MEASURMENTS	23
3.5. DATA COLLECTION	24
3.6. STATISTICAL ANALYSIS	25
3.7. ETHICAL CONSIDERATION	25
3.8. LIMITATION OF THE STUDY	26
PART 4	27
RESULTS	27
4.1. DESCRIPTIVE CHARACTERISTICS OF THE WOMEN	27
PART 5	37
DISCUSSION	37

	Page
PART 6	46
CONCLUSION	46
REFERENCES	47
APPENDIX A. KARABUK UNIVERSITY ETHICAL COMMITTEE APPROVAL FORM	70
APPENDIX B. SULAYMANIYAH GENERAL DIRECTORATE OF HEALTH FORMAL ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL	
APPENDIX C. QUESTIONNAIRE FORM	77
RESUME	83

LIST OF TABLES

	Page
Table 4.1. Socio-demographic characteristics of the women.	27
Table 4.2. Information about BC and risk factors identified by the women	28
Table 4.3. Information of women regarding breast cancer and sources	29
Table 4.4. Information about lifestyle identified by women	29
Table 4.5. Practice of women toward Breast Cancer Screening.	31
Table 4.6. Information of women about Breast Cancer and Risk Factors	32
Table 4.7. Information on Breast Cancer Screening Methods	33
Table 4.8. Barriers and Facilitators of Breast Cancer Screening Practices	36

SYMBOLS AND ABBREVITIONS INDEX

BC : Breast cancer

BCS : Breast Cancer Screening

BSE : Breast Self-Examination

CBE : Clinical Breast Examination

WHO: World Health Organization

PART 1

INTRODUCTION

Cancer is the major reason for morbidity and mortality worldwide. In 2020, a global cancer burden approximated the rate to 19.3 million patients diagnosed with cancer and 10 million death. The mortality rate of cancer in low-medium income countries is high which approximated 70% (WHO, 2021; GLOBOCAN, 2020). It is revealed that 2.3 million women each year have been impacted specifically by BC in 2020, and other related breast diseases caused the greatest number of deaths among women. The death estimation among women by BC is 685,000 in 2020. World Health Organization (WHO) reports showing that in the developed regions, BC rates among women are higher and the rate is on the rise almost in every area of the world (WHO, 2020). BC is identified as one of the cancer types which falls under the category of illnesses in which the cells of breast tissue change and divide in a way that cannot be controlled, this results in a lump or mass. The major BC was observed within the channels which attach the lobules to a nipple and the milk glands (Amjad et al., 2018; American Cancer Society, 2019)

It is recognized that BC risks are increased by various factors, which comprise of positive family history especially genetic susceptibility (BRCA1 and BRCA2), personal history of bone mineral density, non-cancerous breast conditions, and endogenous hormone. Hormonal therapy after menopause, fertility medications, and oral contraceptives are other reproductive factors that increase the risk of BC. Also, factors related to the environment are contributing to increasing the risks of BC which includes exposure to diethylstilbestrol, waste products, and exposures related to job and radiation. Other factors are smoking, unhealthy food, overweighting, and physical inactivity, drinking alcohol (Ozsoy et al., 2017; Farhadihosseinabadi et al., 2018; Escala-Garcia et al., 2020)

Breast cancer is the most common reason of mortality among females particularly in countries of low- and medium-income when compared to upper-income countries, BC rates are lower among women in low-income countries but the death is greater (Bellanger, Zeinomar, Tehranifar & Terry, 2018). It is believed that high death in lowincome countries is due to not enough awareness and knowledge about BC detection, insufficient diagnostic tools, and difficulty in accessing treatment. The reasons which have arisen cases of BC in many developing countries include changes in reproductive factors, urbanization, a westernized lifestyle, raised life expectancy (Shulman, Willett, Sievers & Knaul, 2010; Alawad et al., 2018). In addition to an increase in BC cases worldwide, it is emphasized that the mortality rate decreases with more effective therapy and screening methods (Majid et al., 2009; Al-Issawi et al., 2016). For this reason, the WHO and the Breast Health International Initiative offer guidelines emphasizing the importance of public health awareness programs, breast health protection, early diagnosis, and screening (Karim, Ghalib, Muhammad and Fattah, 2015; Alwan et al., 2017). It is stated that delay in BC diagnosis can be prevented, treatment will begin early, and the mortality rate will be reduced (Abdulla, Alwan, Al-Attar & Mallah, 2016; Shakor & Mohammed, 2019)

In Iraq, the main causes of morbidity and mortality in the general population are cardiovascular diseases and cancer. The following categories of cancers are among the most widespread types of cancers, lung, breast, brain, leukemia, colorectal, prostate, and stomach cancers (Abood, Abdahmed & Mazyed, 2020). After the destruction of the Iraqi regime in 2003, a rapid change happened in the lifestyle of the Iraqi people that affected the patterns and levels of cancer trends in Iraq. In the following years (1980-1988, 1990-1991, 2003-2006, and 2014-2016) biological and chemical war have too much negative impact that leaves high levels of uranium and radiation all over the place, bombing all these things have special effects with danger, bad quality, and difficulty in accessing medical care, environmental pollution, and increased cancer incidence (Saadi, Bond & Percac-Lima, 2011; Khoshnaw, Mohammed & Abdullah, 2016; Aldujaily et al., 2020; Hussain & Lafta, 2021). BC has ranked the first malignancy among Iraqi women. It is stated that BC rates on the raising which reaches approximately one-third of all the Iraqi women who have been diagnosed and registered. This fact has been revealed by the Iraqi Cancer Registry which shows that

younger women have been highly affected. It has become a significant hazard for all females' health in Iraq in the past two decades (Alwan, Al-Diwan, Al-Attar & Eliessa, 2012; Ahmed, Ruanduzy & Yousif, 2016; Abedalrahman, Al-Khalidy& Al-Hashimi, 2019). On the authority of WHO, BC is the first reason for mortality among women in Iraq. According to the Cancer Registry of Iraq in 2015 among an estimated population of nearly 32.5 million, the number of women who were registered to have BC was 4,115. This number is accounted for 19.5% of malignancies that had been newly diagnosed, 34% of women with BC diagnoses, and an incidence number which was 22 per 100,000 in the female population (Alwan et al., 2016; Alwan et al., 2017). In addition, according to GLOBOCAN in 2020 the rate is increasing to a total of 7,515 diagnosed cases in Iraq (GLOBOCAN, 2020)

In parallel, other diseases, mortality by BC can be reduced. This can be done by early diagnoses and treatment that so far are the two most effective ways. Early detection and screening program is very effective for increase BC outcomes and increasing a survival rate. Furthermore educating women about BC and launching early detection programs (WHO, 2018). The screening method consists of breast self-examination (BSE), clinical breast examination (CBE), and mammography. These methods are the most significant and effective methods that are being used in the early detection of BC (Andsoy & Gul, 2014; Ewaid, Shanjar & Mahdi, 2018)

In Iraq, there is a national program for early detection of BC, this program has been established since 2001. In the Iraqi provinces, there are mammography units in medical centers, particular clinics, and hospitals for early detection of BC in where they provide diagnostic mammography services. In 2012, a preliminary opportunistic BC screening trail was achieved at the primary referral center for cancer early detection in the Bagdad Medical city Teaching Hospital. The trial was carried out on 809 women who are more than 40 years old and without symptoms. Due to the fact that applying for organized screening programs in developing countries is not achievable at the current time. Also in Iraq, the nationwide programs for BC screening are inadequate especially for the high-risk group of women. Therefore, applying opportunistic screening can largely increase the early detection rate of BC and improve the awareness of BC in Iraq (Al-Gburi, Alwan, Al-Tameemi & Al-Dabbagh, 2021). On other hand according

to the Iraqi National Breast Cancer Research Program, Iraqi women should start screening by mammography after the age of 40 years preceded by annual CBE together with performing monthly BSE (Al Alwan, Al Attar & Al Mallah, 2016)

Many factors prevent women's BC screening programs, such as socio-demographic, religious, socioeconomic status, lack of knowledge and not having insurance, testing family members positive for BC, fear of underestimating risk and diagnosis, fear of pain and embarrassment with radiation (Parsa, Kandiah, Rahman& Zulkefli, 2006; Al-Attar, Sattar, Al Mallah & Wardia, 2016; Islam, Billah, Hossain & Oldroyd, 2017; Rasul, Cheraghi, & Moghdam, 2016). With this study planned in Iraq, these risk factors will be identified and support a review of health policies according to negative findings. The most recent surveys has been carried out to evaluate the knowledge, attitude, and practices towards BC, and screening methods. It was discovered that women had a low level of knowledge regarding BC, risk factors, awareness, and early detection. However, the studies determining the health behaviors of Iraqi women using these screening methods were also very limited (Salman & Abass, 2015; Alwan, Alattar, Al Mallah & Hassoun, 2017; Alwan, Tawfeeq & Mallah, 2019; Alwan, Tawfeeq, Sattar & Yihya, 2019; Shakor, Mohammed & Karotia, 2019)

The cultural factors influence Muslim Arab females' decisions toward BC and screening behavior. Compared to ethnocultural who live in Western countries, women who are citizens of the countries where the primary language is Arabic have the lowest rates of BC screening (Kwok, Endrawes & Lee, 2016; Petro-Nustas, Norton, Wilhauer & Connelly, 2012). The possible reason for low screening rates among women in Arab countries could be a lack of awareness to do health check-ups when they are not aware of the symptoms and signs of poor health. It has been reported by researchers that most females in Egypt felt no be in need of taking counsel from a physician until they are sick (Mamdouh et al., 2014). Perspectives can shape beliefs about health and sickness and about how Muslim women care about their children, families and make their life long health promotion (Jafari-Mianaeit, Atimohammadi, Banki-Poorfard & Hasanpoor, 2017). Beliefs in Islamic teachings may play an important role in religious women's lives, the religious beliefs and disgrace and shame may influence BC

screening and practices (Hatefnia et al., 2010; Islam et al., 2017; Padela et al., 2018; Zorogastuo et al., 2017). Also, there have been survived that highlighted certain barriers that can discourage women from BC screening programs in Arab countries. The barriers are fear of being diagnosed as cancer is a life threatening disease, and they don't have enough knowledge about the benefits of screening and self-care practices (Soskolne, Marie & Manor, 2007; Islam et al., 2017; Zorogastuo et al. 2017). Culture is a vital factor that affects breast cancer screening among Iraqi women. Also, there is a limited study to determine the relationship between Iraqi women's BC screening practice, behaviors and influence the culture on their participation in BC screening.

On the other hand, it has been observed that studies on the diagnosis, risks, and screening methods of women in Iraq focus very little on studies on BC, and more on clinical symptoms in Iraq (Alwan, Al-Diwan, Al-Attar, & Eliessa, 2012). Unfortunately, there are no exact statistics on BC in Iraq, only the data of GLOBOCAN is taken into consideration. The determination of information about BC, risk factors, and screening of women in Iraq will both guide the cancer screening programs of the country, and transfer data to WHO will be the most important, by creating awareness of BC in women, perhaps women's participation in screening programs (Karim, Ghalib, Mohammed, Fattah, 2015; Alwan et al., 2016; Abedalrahman, Al-Khalidy & Al-Diwan, 2019). Furthermore survival rates in Iraq are lower because of the delay stage of prognosis detection among patients when BC probable to be incurable, lack of early detection programs joined with inadequate diagnostic and treatment facilities, low socioeconomic status, and low levels of knowledge and incorrect beliefs about BC prevention (Alwan et al., 2016; Ahmed, Ruanduzy & Yousif, 2016; Alwan et al., 2018; Mutar, Goyani, Had & Mahmood, 2019; Alwan & Tawfeeq, 2019). Health professionals, especially nurses, have important duties and responsibilities in the effective implementation of BC screening programs and creating awareness among women. These responsibilities include training women toward BC, risk factors, early detection programs, determining the screening barriers of females, and the importance of BC (Teixeira et al., 2017; Association of Women's Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses, 2017; Abdelaziz, Salem, Zaki & Atteya, 2015; Andsoy & Gul, 2014). For these reasons, this crosssectional quantitative exploratory design study aimed to investigate Iraqi women's BC

screening practices and behaviors and to explain the influence of the culture on their participation in BC screening.

PART 2

LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1. OVERVIEW OF BREAST CANCER

Breast is an endocrine gland exists in pairs, one in each side in front of chest wall which considered greatly advanced and specified organ of the body. A main role of breasts is excreting milk and it is a most important part of the body for women's reproductive system (Khan &Sajjad, 2020). BC is defined as the development of the breast cells in a way that its control is impossible. This disease principally happens due to malignancy tumors arising within the cell of the breast. BC starts in two methods which include the ducts or cells of lobules and a less possible in the tissues of stromal. After a period of time, the cells of malignancy be able to attack the healthy tissue of the breast and reach to lymph nodes located below the arm and spread easily to different sites of the body. In addition each stage of BC indicates of which distance spreading the malignancy from the original tumor site (Breast Cancer Org, 2018, Feng et al., 2018)

The highest recurrent malignancy amongst females is BC, the incidence rate is increased to 2.3 million females and resulted from the highest rates of mortality that rated 685,000 in 2020. Also the 5 years survival rate of BC among women all over the world was approximate 6.8 million in 2018 (Harbeck et al., 2019; GLOBOCAN, 2020). In addition, these tumors happen worldwide which considered in relation to the environment, the structure of the population, lifestyle and factors of heredity which change largely the rate of mortality, incidence, and survival among various countries (WHO, 2018; Harbeck et al., 2019; Costantino et al., 2020). Besides to the highest incidence rate of BC and reduced mortality rate in recent years within developed country which is related to early detection, accessibility of BC screening methods specialty utility of mammography and effective

diagnose as well as treatment particularly among young age women (Momenimovahed & Salehiniya, 2019; Cardoso et al., 2019). Conversely in the developing country, the mortality rate of BC is highest in spite of low incidence due to lack of early detection awareness programs, insufficiency of BC screening methods especially mammography, deficiency of diagnosis and treatment approaches as well as late-stage diagnose of BC (Rivera-Franco & Leon-Rodriguez, 2018; Francies, Hull, Khanyile & Dlamini, 2020). Unfortunately women who survives form BC in developing countries suffers from a lot of problems related to chemotherapy such as body image, sexuality weakness and isolation form community (Ganz et al., 2013; Yılmaz & Gürler, 2020)

In Iraq, BC is the first cause of death related cancer among women. According to Cancers Register office of Iraq indicates which 4,115 cases of BC have been registered amongst an estimated population of approximately 32.5 million; accounting to 19.5% of newly diagnosed malignancies, 34% of female cancers and an incidence of 22 per 100,000 female populations in 2015 (Alwan et al., 2017). Similarly according to World health organization the incidence rate is increased to 7,515 (37.9%) new diagnosis cases in 2020 (GLOBOCAN, 2020)

2.2. ETIOLOGY AND RISK FACTORS

Etiology of breast cancer is consisting of many subordinate types of biological malignant tumor, and it is also dependent on a number of factors that include hereditary predisposition, environmental, hormones as well as alteration of gene progress (Deshpande, Pandey & Shyama, 2017; Angahar et al., 2017). For example, it is indicated in a study that women who have migrated from Asia which is low in the frequency of BC to the United States which is high in BC frequency, the incidence was high because of material and social environmental effects (White, Kavanaugh-Lynch, Davis-Patterson & Buermeyer, 2020)

2.2.1. Modifiable Risk Factors

2.2.1.1. Endogenous Hormone

The level of the high endogenous hormone have a positive association with BC, women who are at the postmenopausal stage have a high level of the endogenous hormone that increase two time chance for the risk of BC (The Endogenous Hormones and Breast Cancer Collaborative Group, 2002; American Cancer Society, 2019).

2.2.1.2. Fertility Drugs

The drugs that stimulate the ovarian to secrete more levels of progesterone and estrogen which affect breast and ovarian tissues, in the phase of proliferative cells collects random DNA alteration, as well as leads to cancer. Fertility drugs, increase the risk of BC by 2.3 % yearly (Marchbanks et al., 2002; Collins, Blake & Crosignani, 2005; Russo et al., 2014).

2.2.1.3. Obesity and Physical Inactivity

One of the important risk factors to cause most diseases is obesity and physical inactivity, especially BC. The increased risk of BC due to excess body weight and physical inactivity particularly among postmenopausal women resulted in poorer diagnosis and the highest death compared to women who are physically active and have healthy body weight in low risk for BC (Kamińska et al., 2015; Gershwin, Ahima, & Tchou, 2016)

2.2.1.4. Alcohol

Another risk factor for BC among women is the consumption of alcohol because of high level of Estrogen and other hormones which affects breast cell and lead to malignancy (Boyle & Boffetta, 2009; Sader et al., 2009; Angahar, 2017).

2.2.1.5. Tobacco

Smoking tobacco is carcinogenic substances that increase the risk of many cancers, one of them ,BC which is the most common cancer among women Females who begun smoking at teen-age or before menstruation ages have a high chance of growing BC (Jones et al., 2017; Angahar et al., 2017).

2.2.1.6. Radiation

The females who exposure to radiation of the chest at an early age of life have an increased risk for BC, especially women's who treated for Hodgkin lymphoma by chest radiation therapy have the highest chance of developing BC raised from 4-56 times compared to women with non-receiving treatment for Hodgkin lymphoma (Hill et al., 2005; Inskip et al., 2009).

2.2.1.7. Nightly Shift Work

The employees who work at night shift exposure to light are more likely to develop BC especially nurses and flight attendant because of disruption of sleep mechanism which related to melatonin secretion, the function of melatonin is preventing the growth of small tumors from developing to cancer (Hunter & Figueiro, 2017; Jones et al., 2019).

2.2.2. Non-Modifiable Risk Factors

2.2.2.1. Age

The risk for BC rises with age, which increases two times until menopause. Also, the rate of BC is highest among women who reach menopause and the most diagnosis cases with BC at age 50 or more in addition to lesser diagnosis below 40 age (Moorthie et al., 2017; Momenimovahed & Salehiniya, 2019).

2.2.2. Family History

One of the important risk factor to develop BC is family history, approximately 13% to 19% of females who are positive for BC have first degree family member with BC which include mother, sister, daughter (Shiyanbola et al., 2017; Bojanic et al., 2020).

2.2.2.3. Genetic Predisposition

The most recurrent cancers among females are breast and ovarian cancer, as well as genetic predisposition has emerged as one of the main risk factors for developing breast and ovarian malignancies. The most identified genes related to genetic breast and ovarian cancer are BRCA1 and BRCA2. Although the latest advances discovered several new genes which cause breast and ovarian malignancies (De Silva, Tennekoon & Karunanayake, 2019; Angeli, Salvi & Tedaldi, 2020).

2.2.2.4. Personal History

One of the important factor to develop new BC is female's personal history of BC which malignancy happens in the same site or the other site of the breast. Females who received treatment of BC have more chance to increasing risk for new cancer in treated breast or other breast (Shah, Rosso & Nathanson, 2014; Angahar et al., 2017).

2.2.2.5. Benign Breast Disease

Non-cancerous breast conditions which divided to non- proliferative, proliferative without atypia, and atypical hyperplasia. Proliferative and atypical hyperplasia considered as a significant factor to increase the risk for BC which can be happen in both breast of women (Hartmann et al., 2005; Louro et al., 2020).

2.2.2.6. Breast Density

One of the strongest identified risk factor to develop BC is breast density which measured by dense or white parts of breast that diagnosis by mammogram. Females who diagnosis to more than 75 % of breast density have chance of 4.6 times for developing BC when compared to females who have little mammographic density (Wang, Vachon, Brandt & Ghosh, 2014; Moran et al., 2019).

2.2.2.7. Menstrual Cycles

Women who began early menstruation before the age of 11 years old have more chance to increasing the risk of BC. Also, females who had late menopause after 55 or older have a greater chance to develop BC (Eaton et al., 2002; Surakasula, Nagarjunapu & Raghavaiah, 2014; Khalis et al., 2018).

2.2.2.8. Bone Mineral Density (BMD)

Another risk factor to developing BC is high bone mineral density especially among postmenopausal women because of higher endogenous hormone levels which increase the chance of BC from 60% to 80% when compared to women with a low bone mineral density who have less risk (Zain, Vilashni, Dore Lim & Chelliah, 2016; American Cancer Society, 2019).

2.3. DIAGNOSIS METHODS

The diagnosis of BC can be detected by a woman or physician by feels a tumor or the changes that happen in the skin or nipple of the breast. BC cells during diagnosis could be found in tissue, lymph nodes located in the axillary, or metastasis to other sites of the body. Depending on where the cancer is discovered. The stage of BC is determined, from I to IV (Zhang et al., 2012; Waks & Winer, 2019).

2.3.1. Diagnostic Mammography

One of the important method is diagnostic mammography by x-ray examination used to diagnosis uncommon breast changes such as pain, lump, and any fluid or liquid that come out from the nipple of breast, skin changes in addition to nipple which turns to inner side of breast (Barlow et al., 2002; Badu-Peprah & Adu-Sarkodie, 2018).

2.3.2. Ultrasound

The principal imaging techniques that safe and not need radiation is an ultrasound of the breast. It is use of sound waves to create images of the inner structure of breast which diagnosis breast diseases. Also, it is used for females less than 30 years old to examine sensible lesions and to afford additional description of mammography with abnormal outcomes. In addition to detecting BC cells which are smaller (Evans et al., 2018; Rapelyea & Marks, 2018).

2.3.3. Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI)

MRI is one of the more accurate modal quality used to detect and description of breast tumors. In recent years recognized that magnetic resonance imaging with intravenous gadolinium contrast was a high critical implement to separating cancer from tissue, and in specific the new blood vessels and abnormal micro vascular permeability which accompanies a tumor (Schoub et al., 2018; Radhakrishna et al., 2018).

2.3.4. Fine Needle Aspiration Biopsy (FNA)

Another approach which used broadly for last years to diagnosis BC is fine-needle aspiration biopsy which done by a cytologist, this method is done by removing fluid or cells from the tumor for cytological investigation (Vega Bolívar et al., 2011; Ahmadinejad et al., 2017).

2.3.5. Core Needle Biopsy (CNB)

It is an important method for suspected breast abnormality during screening or examination, and one of the types of biopsy that diagnosis breast lump more accurately. It is done by removes a large part of breast tissue for examination to detect cancer cells. CNB is widely used because of safety, have no complication, cost-effective assessment. For that reason, the combination of core needle biopsy with a guide of mammography or ultrasonography is particularly greater in non-notable lumps (Oyama, Koibuchi & McKee, 2004; Vega Bolívar et al., 2011; Bick et al., 2020).

2.3.6. Surgical Biopsy

One of the most used methods nowadays especially in developing countries is open surgical biopsy which called the gold standard. It is used for women with suspected breast lumps which done in operating theatre. There are two types of surgical breast biopsy, excisional and incisional biopsy. Excisional biopsy is done by remove of the whole tumor and normal surrounding tissue. However, incisional biopsy involves removing the portion of the tumor for tissue examination. Surgical breast biopsy have a little chance for incorrect diagnosis but a greater risk for side effects like infection, pain, and bleeding at the site of biopsy (Buccimazza et al., 2010; Calhoun &Anderson 2014; Isikhuemen 2018.

2.4. TREATMENTS

2.4.1. Surgery

The main aim of surgical approach is to remove the cancer cells from breast. There are many types of surgical methods which include mastectomy, lumpectomy. Mastectomy done by complete remove of the breast. However, lumpectomy is remove of the breast malignancy cell and surrounding normal tissue. Mastectomy and lumpectomy commonly done together for remove lymph nodes to decide if the malignancy has been metastasis. In addition, a number of BC cases may need a comprehensive operation of

lymph nodes. Another type of surgical method is bilateral mastectomy for women who are positive with BC which involve remove of unaffected breast to prevent cancer from recurrence (American Cancer Society, 2019; Riis et al., 2020).

2.4.2. Radiation Therapy

One of the effective approach to treat BC at every phase is radiation therapy. Nowadays the crucial step to treat BC at early stage especially after operation of removing cancer and surrounding normal tissue of breast. In progressive BC radiation therapy play an important role on raising local control of malignancy and survival rates of women particularly in metastasis cases (Mikulandra, Božina & Beketić-Orešković, 2016; Akram, Iqbal, Daniyal & Khan, 2017).

2.4.3. Chemotherapy

The most important method to treat BC and prolong patient's survival. Chemotherapy is a drug that target and attack cancer cells in the body. Also it is inter to cell division phase and functioning firstly at cells which fast in division. The patients who received chemotherapy suffer from complications which experience particular levels of behavioral problem while handling sign and symptoms (Smoot, Wampler & Topp, 2009; Ikhuoria, & Bach, 2018).

2.4.4. Targeted Therapy

The new and more efficient approach to treat BC is target therapy which works only on specified cancer cells without damage the normal cells of the breast, it is a medication that prevents the development of cancer metastatic through entering to particular molecules participated of progress, growth, and metastasis of BC cell to other sites of the body. One of the approved medication called Trastuzumab, is antibody acts on protein human epidermal growth factor receptor 2 used to treat types of BC (Karale, Karale & Utikar, 2018; American Cancer Society, 2019).

2.4.5. Endocrine Treatment

Treatment of BC with endocrine or hormonal therapy which is sensitive to hormones works through reducing the body's making of hormones or thru inhibition of hormones to receptors attaching within the cells of malignancy. These medications increase the survival rate, reduce death, and enhanced the prognosis. One of the most used drugs is Tamoxifen which used for more than thirty years to treat BC with hormone receptorpositive (Fan, Chang, & Fu, 2015; Cheung et al., 2018).

2.4.6. Immunotherapy

One of the developed parts in the treatment of BC is immunotherapy medication which efficiently motivates a patient's immune system to identified and devastate the malignancy cells. One of the types of immunotherapy is checkpoint inhibitor which used to treat BC, a medications' role is to target this inhibitor support for return immune system reaction in opposition to malignancy cells of the breast (Dine et al., 2017; American Cancer Society, 2019).

2.5. PREVENTIVE APPROACH IN BREAT CANCER

2.5.1. Primary Prevention

Breast cancer prevention determined by risk factors which is divided into modifiable and non- modifiable. Non-modifiable risk factors which involve genetic alteration, older age, benign breast disease, family and personal history, those factors cannot be changed and powerfully increase the risk for BC. Modifiable risk factors can be prevented by a correct lifestyle. In addition, decreasing exposure to endogenous hormones, reduce of oral contraceptive and hormonal replacement therapy for a long time. Other changeable risk factors are obesity, non-healthy regimen, alcohol consumption, and physical inactivity. These factors can be reduced by physical activity, healthy food (intake of more vegetables and fruits also less eating of animal fat and proteins), normal body mass index, especially after menopause, all of them

mention factors powerfully related to reducing the level of estrogen which lead to decrease the risk of BC (Sauter et al., 2018; Costantino et al., 2020).

2.5.2. Chemoprevention

The medications that are used to decrease the risk of BC is chemoprevention. At the present time the Food, Drug Admiration approved two available medications that help to reduce the risk of BC among highest-risk group of women which include raloxifene and tamoxifen. Chemoprevention medication acts by inhibiting the Estrogen hormone within the body's tissue, as well as works like estrogen hormone in other tissues (Khaliq & Visvanathan, 2012; Pruthi, Heisey, & Bevers, 2015; American Cancer Society, 2019).

2.5.3. Preventive Surgery

One of the preventive ways to reduce the risk of BC among females who are at the highest risk (genetic alteration of BRCA1 and BRCA2) can undergo surgical removal of breasts for reducing the risk by more than 90%. Particularly a lot of females who undergo preventive surgery will not have the risk of developing BC (American Cancer Society, 2019; Franceschini et al., 2019).

2.6. BREAT CANCER SCREENING

2.6.1. Mammography

The most important method for BC screening is mammogram. The mammography is low dosage of x-ray which imaging the tissue of breast and used in the early diagnosis of BC. There are various advantage of mammography which include decrease the BC death and increasing the treatment choices. Women have to start yearly screening among the ages of 40 and 44, whilst for age group 45- 54 must have screened yearly, of age or above must screening every 2 years according to American Cancer Society. In addition to advantages of mammography there is also disadvantage which is false positive result especially among women who have screening at first time

(Oeffinger et al., 2015; American Cancer Society, 2019; Shen, Winget & Yan Yuan, 2017).

2.6.2. Clinical Breast Examination (CBE)

One of essential methods of BC screening especially for low income countries that have inadequate access to costly medical technologies like mammography is clinical breast examination. The CBE is a physical examination method performed by the professional health care to identify the various conditions of breast abnormalities. CBE recommended by breast cancer foundation every 3 years between the ages of 20-39, in addition, once a year after the age of 40 which recommended by the American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists and the American College of Radiology (Saslow et al., 2004; Mango et al., 2018; Veitch et al., 2019).

2.6.3. Breast Self –Examination (BSE)

The manual examination of breasts by women considered a vital method of BC screening to detect early cancer. The method of BSE is cost-effective, simple to perform, harmless, requiring no instrument or device, and not causing pain. The BSE techniques include looking and feeling in standing and lying position in front of the mirror for any breast lumps, pain, skin changes, dimpling, nipple discharge, pulled-in nipple, change in size, shape, similarity, redness. The BSE should start at the age of 20 and should be performed once a month. Additionally, the BSE is essential for raising awareness of breast health which helps to discover abnormality among females who find it difficult to access health services and laboratories for recently developed BC diagnostic approaches (Doshi, Reddy, Kulkarni & Karunakar, 2012; Shrivastava, Shrivastava & Ramasamy, 2013; Ayran et al., 2017; Dagne, Ayele & Assefa, 2019; Getu, Wudu Kassaw, Tlaye, & Gebrekiristos, 2018).

2.6.4. Breast Cancer Screening in Iraq

In Iraq, the incidence of BC among women is high, they are presenting at advance stage of cancer especially at younger age groups, and the most cases which diagnosed

for BC are premenopausal females. There is a national program for early detection of BC, this program has been established since 2001. In the Iraqi provinces, there are mammography units in medical centers, particular clinics and hospitals for early detection of BC where they provide diagnostic mammography services. In 2012, a preliminary opportunistic of BC screening trail was achieved at the primary referral center for cancer early detection in the Bagdad Medical city Teaching Hospital. The trial was carried out on 809 women who are more than 40 years old and without symptoms. Due to the fact that applying organized screening programs in developing countries is not achievable at the current time. Also in Iraq, the nationwide programs for BC screening is inadequate especially for high risk group of women. Therefore, applying opportunistic screening can largely increase the early detection rate of BC and improve the awareness towards BC in Iraq (Al-Gburi, Alwan, Al-Tameemi & Al-Dabbagh, 2021). On other hand according to the Iraqi National Breast Cancer Research Program, Iraqi women should start monthly BSE at the age 20 which is an important method to detect breast abnormalities. The better time to practice BSE is 7- 10 days after menstruation cycle. The CBE should star at the age 20 and checking every 2-3 years, in addition to yearly check up at the age 30 or over. Mammography screening method should began at age 40 years, also after the age of 40 years must done once a year. For high risk women screening of mammography start at age of 30 and checking once a year (Al Alwan & Mualla, 2014, Al Alwan et al., 2015; Al Alwan, Al Attar & Al Mallah, 2016; Alkhazrajy & Souza, 2018; Shakor & Mohammed, 2018; Al-Alwan et al., 2019; Al Ameen, Rajab, Ali & Al Diwan, 2020).

2.6.5. Importance of Breast Cancer Screening and Nursing Approach

Breast cancer screening is very important because it detect cancer at early stage when it is easy to treat and less expensive. The early diagnosis and efficient therapy is vital because help to decrease morbidity, death, cost of care, increased the survival rate and enhanced quality of life. Female's information and a positive attitude to BC screening methods is essential about significance of BC diagnosis at early stage. BC screening regularly doing it prevent the cancer form spread to the body's other site (Heidari, Mahmoudzadeh-Sagheb & Sakhavar, 2007; Jin et al., 2014; Momenimovahed et al., 2020; Ginsburg et al., 2020).

Breast cancer screening play a vital role for the early diagnosis of cancer and effective treatment. There are various common important factors that affect women's participation in BC screening which involve cost and insurance, knowledge, feeling, sociodemographic factors, cultural factors, belief, pain, and embarrassment, fear, religious, psychological factors, communications, social support and access, and time constraint (O'Hara et al., 2018). Also, it has been revealed that a small percentage around 20% of women use the health facility programs for early detection. Different factors have been identified for low participation such as cultural attitudes towards screening methods. For example, feeling shameful to show their breasts to others, while if they are not screened for early detection, their survival rate might be lower. Regarding death from BC, there are different results of the underutilization of BC screening programs. This includes various impacts of health and well-being such as social distress, psychological suffering, and malfunction, role performance reduction. Also, the individual's emotional adversity, increasing costs in medical and health facilities can be reduced by early detection, treatment, and care (Momenimovahed et al., 2020; Suwankhong & Liamputtong, 2018; Hwang et al., 2016).

The cultural factor play an important role on influencing Muslim Arab females' decisions regarding BC, and screening behavior. Compared to ethno cultural who live in Western countries, women who are citizens of the countries in where the primary language is Arabic have the lowest rates of BC screening (Kwok, Endrawes & Lee, 2016; Petro-Nustas, Norton, Wilhauer & Connelly, 2012). The possible reason to low screening rates among women in Arab countries could be a lack of awareness to do health check-ups when they are not aware of the symptoms and signs of poor health. It has been reported by researchers that most females in Egypt felt no be in need of take counsel from a physician until they are sick (Mamdouh et al., 2014). Perspectives can shape beliefs about health and sickness and about how Muslim women care about their children, families and make their life long health promotion (Jafari-Mianaeit, Atimohammadi, Banki-Poorfard & Hasanpoor, 2017). Beliefs in Islamic teachings may play an important role in religious women's lives, the religious beliefs and disgrace and shame may influence BC screening and practices (Hatefnia et al., 2010; Islam et al., 2017; Padela et al., 2018; Zorogastuo et al., 2017). Also, there have been survives that highlighted certain barriers that can discourage women to BC screening programs in Arab countries. The barriers are fear of being diagnosed as cancer is a life threatening disease, and they don't have enough knowledge about the benefits of screening and self-care practices (Soskolne, Marie & Manor, 2007; Islam et al., 2017; Zorogastuo et al. 2017). Cultural is a vital factor which affect breast cancer screening among Iraqi women. Also there is a limited study to determine relationship between Iraqi women's BC screening practice, behaviors and influence the culture on their participation of BC screening. For these reasons, this cross-sectional quantitative exploratory design study aimed to investigate Iraqi women's BC screening practices and behaviors and to explain influence the culture on their participation of BC screening.

The role of nurse in health promotion and prevention of BC should have a part of nursing's aim of practice. The role of nurse in BC is to identify risk factors, and have the communication and teaching skills to work with women to change behaviors to reduce risk factors. Nurses have many responsibilities to improve health promotion, to achieve this essential aim, to perform BC screening program, to educate, provide and increase awareness among women. To improve results, prevention must be coupled with screening and early detection measures. Early detection of BC reduces the overall costs of cancer treatment. In addition, nurses can educate the women about BC, to improve awareness and appropriately refer for further evaluation. Further, nurses can increase adherence to screening guidelines because they are viewed as trusted members of their society. Also, the nurse role is very important to reduce the barriers of women towards BC screening methods. As a result, nurses can act more efficiently as guides and can decrease delay in care (Vogel et al., 2003; Abdelaziz, Salem, Zaki & Atteya, 2015, Challinor et al., 2016). In Iraq, however, nowadays a little women have information about BC and breast cancer screening. Unfortunately, a standard follow-up for screening tests cannot be fully implemented. Also, there are not special educated nurse for oncology patient. Nurses' role is not clear and there is no academic research in nursing field. Prevention program for BC is poor because of lack of training, centers and educated nurse for this field. The need for overall knowledge about BC is essential to plan and perform control programs for the deadly BC which may be useful to prevention, early detection and treatment.

PART 3

MATERIAL AND METHODS

3.1. RESEARCH DESIGN

A descriptive, cross-sectional exploratory study was conducted to assess women's knowledge, attitude, practice towards breast cancer and screening, and to explain the influence of the Arab culture specific barriers on women's participation in breast cancer screening.

3.2. SETTING OF THE STUDY

The study was conducted in Sulaymaniyah city in north of Iraq during the period of March 2019 to February 2020. Sulaymaniyah is a governorate located in North of Iraq, and placed in the East by Iran and the Iraqi provinces of Erbil, Kirkuk, Salah Al-Din, and Diyala to the North, West, and South separately. The majority of the population in Sulaymaniyah city is ethnic Sunni Muslim Kurds, Arabs, Shiite and a number of Chaldean Christian (Zakaria et al., 2013; Ahmed et al., 2016; Inter-Agency Information and Analysis Unit of Iraq, 2020). The population of Iraq is 40,800,438 based on Worldometer detailing of the latest United Nations data (Accessed date 15 March 2021). The total population of Sulaymaniyah city is 723,170 based on Worldometer elaboration of the latest United Nations data of Iraq Population (Accessed date 15 March 2021). In Iraq, the women population is 20,562,885 according to Countrymeters estimates based on the latest United Nations data (Accessed date 15 March 2021). The population of women in Sulaimaniyah city according to 2012 data is 464,259 between 20 and 70 years old (Majid et al., 2017)

3.3. STUDY SAMPLE

The sample of the study were women who live in Sulaymaniyah city. The inclusion criteria were age 20-70 year's old, female's gender and who able to read and write, while exclusion criteria were age ≤ 20 years and ≥ 70 years, and female who are having difficulty in communication, Kurds and Christian women. In the calculation of the sample size of the study, 1066 Iraqi women are included according to the sample size formula with a known population (N = 464,259) (Majid et al., 2017) used, and it was calculated that at least 295 women between the ages of 20 and 70 should be included. The sample size used in the calculation formula:

$$n= \frac{N t^2 p^* q}{d^2 (N-1)+t^2 p^* q}$$

N=464,259

t = 1.96

d = effect size (taken as 0.05 in the study)

p= from previous studies found as 0.26 (Al-Attar, Abdul Sattar, Al Mallah &Wardia, 2016)

3.4. MEASURMENTS

Data were collected through the four following instruments.

Socio-demographic characteristics of the women Survey: This part is created by relevant literature (WHO, 2018; GLOBOCAN, 2018). The Socio-Demographic Characteristics of Women Survey was used to determine socio-demographic characteristics (e.g., age, education, profession, ethnic, marital status, socioeconomic situation, marriage age, presence of child, age of first birth, contraceptive use, exercise, nutrition, breastfeeding, smoke cigarettes, age of first menstrual period, previous breast problems, and breast cancer-related variables (i.e., family history of breast cancer, heard about BC and sources. This survey consisted of 21 items.

The women's knowledge about Breast Cancer, risk factors and Breast Cancer Screening Survey: This survey is created by relevant literature (WHO, 2018; GLOBOCAN, 2018). The women's knowledge about breast cancer, risk factors and Breast Cancer Screening survey was used to determine the knowledge about breast cancer, risk factors, and breast cancer screening. This survey included a total of 35 items. The correct answer scored 1 while false or I don't know answer scored 0. Breast cancer and risk factors knowledge consisted of 22 items. Women's breast cancer and risk factors knowledge level were 8.45± 9.32 (0-22). Breast cancer screening methods (BSE, CBE, and Mammography) knowledge consisted of 13 items. Women's knowledge score of breast cancer screening was found 5.09± 5.44 (0-13)

The women's Breast Cancer Screening Practices: The women's Breast Cancer Screening Practices survey was used to determine the practices of women toward breast cancer screening (BSE, CBE, and Mammography). This survey included a total of 17 items which divided to three parts, breast self-examination (7), clinical breast examination (5) and mammography (5).

Arab Culture-Specific Barriers to Breast Cancer Questionnaire (ACSB) (Cohen & Azaiza, 2008): Permission was obtained from authors to utilize the scales. The Arab Culture-Specific Barriers to Breast Cancer Questionnaire (ACSB) was developed by Cohen and Azaiza (2008). This tool is composed of 21 items and five sub-scales (exposure barriers, social barriers, religious beliefs concerning cancer, environmental barriers and uneasiness with own body). All items have five response choices ranging from strongly agree (1 point) to strongly disagree (5 points). A low score indicates a high level of cultural obstacles related to breast cancer screening behaviour. Cohen and Azaiza reported Cronbach's alpha ranged from 0.76 to 0.90. In this study, Cronbach's alpha ranged from 0.86 to 0.96.

3.5. DATA COLLECTION

Data collection was conducted from March 2019 to February 2020. After explaining the study objectives and assuring confidentiality and privacy of the data, verbal and written informed consent was obtained from each women. All documents, including

surveys, consent forms were made available in Kurdish, English and Arabic. A researcher translated the English materials into Arabic and checked the translations for accuracy. Data were collected by researcher by face to face interview. Data collection averaged about 20 minutes per woman.

3.6. STATISTICAL ANALYSIS

Data were analyzed using SPSS® (SPSS Inc., Chicago, IL) version 21.0 for® Windows® (Microsoft Corporation, Redmond, WA). Descriptive statistics (percentage, mean, and standard deviation) were calculated to find the distribution of the socio-demographic characteristics of the women, practices about breast health, knowledge of breast cancer screening methods and risk factors, and Arab culture-specific breast cancer screening barriers. Logistic regression analysis was conducted because of the use of categorical dependent variables (performed BSE, attended CBE, had a mammogram). Categorical variables (age, education, marital status, has information about BSE, CBE and mammogram) and numerical variables (knowledge score, sub-scales of Arab culture-specific barriers to breast cancer screening) were taken as covariates. A backward stepwise (conditional) regression method was used. The significance of each independent variable in the bivariate model was assessed by a Wald-type chi-square test. The statistical significance was set at 0.05 for all analyses.

3.7. ETHICAL CONSIDERATION

Approval was obtained from the ethical committee at Karabuk University with the project-wide variety (77192459-050.01.04-E.11637) at the date of (05/03/2020). Formal administrative approval was obtained from the Sulaymaniyah General Directorate of Health with the project number (12006) on (07/12/2020), Department of Planning and Health Research for conducting this study.

3.8. LIMITATION OF THE STUDY

During the targeted time of data collection, the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic reached Iraq. Data collection was delayed due to complete lockdown and curfew. Also, there were difficulties to communicate with people because of the virus risks.

PART 4

RESULTS

In this part, the result of Iraqi women's knowledge, attitude, practice towards breast cancer and screening methods is shown, and the influence of the Arab culture specific barriers on women's participation in breast cancer screening is explained.

4.1. DESCRIPTIVE CHARACTERISTICS OF THE WOMEN

Table 4.1 shows that socio-demographic characteristics of the women were 36.5% aged 50 years and above. The mean age of women was 45.20± 14.069, 35.5% of women had university or above, 60.9% were housewife, all of participants were Arabs, 65.5% of women were married, and (53.0%) had medium socioeconomic.

Table 4.1. Socio-demographic characteristics of the women.

Variables		n (%)
	20-29	221 (20.7%)
Age	30-39	203 (19.0%)
	40-49	254 (23.8%)
	50+	388 (36.5%)
M±SD	45.20 ± 14.069 (21-69)	
	No formal education	92 (8.6%)
Education	Primary - Secondary	368 (34.5%)
	High School	228 (21.4%)
	University or above	378 (35.5%)
Level of Education	Employees	324 (30.4%)
	Retired	93 (8.7%)
	Housewife	649 (60.9%)
Ethnic	Arabic	1066 (100%)
Marital status	Married	698 (65.5%)
	Single	368 (34.5%)
Socioeconomic	Low	139 (13.0%)
situation	Medium	565 (53.0%)
	High	362 (34.0%)
Total	_	1066 (100%)

Table 4.2 shows that information about breast cancer and risk factors identified by the women were 52.5% married at age (18-30), 44.6% of the women had above four children, and 43.8% had less than three, 58.7% of women were within the (18-30) age group in first birth. Regarding to contraceptive use, 68.7% of women were not use contraceptive, 15.5% of women were perform breastfeeding. The majority of women regard to first menstrual period age 86.8% were above 11 years old, and 82.6% of women did not have any previous breast problems, (72.4%) of women did not have any family history of breast cancer.

Table 4.2. Information about BC and risk factors identified by the women.

Variables		n (%)
	<18	278 (31.5%)
Marriage age	18-30	464 (52.5%)
	>30	141 (16.0%)
	None	102 (11.6%)
Presence of child	Less than 3	386 (43.8%)
riesence of child	4 and above	393 (44.6%)
	<18	233 (29.9%)
Age of first birth	18-30	457 (58.7%)
	>30	89 (11.4%)
Contro contino nos	Yes	273 (31.3%)
Contraceptive use	No	599 (68.7%)
Descrifeeding	Yes	162 (15.5%)
Breastfeeding	No	886 (84.6%)
	<11	141 (13.2%)
Age first menstrual period	11<	925 (86.8%)
	No	772 (72.4%)
Duraniana huaast muahlama	Yes	186 (17.4%)
Previous breast problems	No	880 (82.6%)
Family history of breast cancer	Yes	294 (27.6%)
	No	772 (72.4%)

Table 4.3 reports that all of women heard about breast cancer, and the majority 65.8% source of information was media.

Table 4.3. Information of women regarding breast cancer and sources.

Variables	n (%)
Have you heard about breast	Yes 1066 (100.0%)
cancer?	
Source of Information (n= 1066)	
Media	701 (65.8%)
Friends	110 (10.3%)
Health care provider	235 (22.0%)
Conference + Seminar	20 (1.9%)

Table 4.4 reports that information about lifestyle identified by women 49.9% of women never do exercise, while 16.3% do exercise once a week, 56.4% consume low fiber, high protein, and fat, 43.6% consume many fruits and vegetables, 85.2% were non-smokers.

Table 4.4. Information about lifestyle identified by women.

Variables		n
	(%)	
	Never	531 (49.9%)
Exercise	Sometimes	238 (22.3%)
	Once a week	174 (16.3%)
	Three times a week	123 (11.5%)
Nutrition	Many fruits and vegetables	465 (43.6%)
Nutrition	Low fiber, high protein and fat	601 (56.4%)
Smolta aigerattes	Yes	158 (14.8%)
Smoke cigarettes	No	908 (85.2%)

Table 4.5 shows practice of women toward breast cancer screening which includes (BSE, CBE, and Mammography). 491 (46.1%) of women's have information about BSE and the majority source of information 258 (52.5%) were health care providers, followed by mass media 215 (43.8%). Source of information about performing BSE 362 (77.2%) were doctors, and 27 (5.8%) were nurses.

Table 4.5 shows majority of the women's 619 (58.1%) did not practice BSE. Only 447 (41.9%) practiced BSE. Women's who practiced BSE, 303 (67.6%) were regular, 60

(13.4%) were irregular, 85 (19.0%) were as they think about it. The reasons of women who not practiced BSE, majority of them 431 (69.7%) not having a breast complaint, 141 (22.8%) were afraid to discover a tumor, 30 (4.8%) were not having time, 17 (2.7%) were lack of information.

Table 4.5 shows 468 (43.9%) of women heard about CBE and the majority source 283 (60.5%) were health workers, 177 (37.8%) were media, and 8 (1.7%) were friends. Majority of women 666 (62.5%) not had CBE while 400 (37.5%) of them had it. Women's had CBE, 291 (72.7%) were in the last 2 years, 63 (15.8%) were in the last 5 years, 46 (11.5%) they don't remember. The reasons of women who not had CBE, majority of them 443 (66.5%) not having breast complaints, followed by 124 (18.7%) they afraid of the procedure and the bad results, 40 (6.0%) they didn't find it necessary, 26 (3.9%) were "ashamed", 14 (2.1%) were afraid of pain and discomfort, 13 (1.9%) were "nobody suggests", 6 (0.9%) "They have never heard of it".

Table 4.5 shows 461 (43.2%) of women have information about mammography and the majority source 277 (60.2%) were health workers, 176 (38.1%) were media, and 8 (1.7%) were friends. Majority of women 692 (64.9%) not had mammography while 374 (35.1%) of them had it. Women's had mammography, 286 (76.5%) were in the last 2 years, 52 (13.9%) were in the last 5 years, 36 (9.6%) they don't remember. The reasons of women who not had mammography, majority of them 491 (70.9%) not having breast complaints, followed by 116 (16.8%) they afraid of the procedure and the bad results, 53 (7.7%) they didn't find it necessary, 23 (3.3%) said mammography cannot be accessed, 9 (1.3%) were ashamed.

Table 4.5. Practice of women toward Breast Cancer Screening.

Breast self-examination	Yes	No	
_	n (%)	n (%)	
Have information about breast self- examination	491 (46.1%)	575(53.9%)	
Sources (n= 491)			
Media	215 (43.8%)	1	
Friends	18 (3.7%)	1	
Health care providers	258 (52.5%)	1	
Get information about performing BSE	469 (44.0%)	597 (56.0%)	
Sources (n= 469)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Family	55 (11.7%)	1	
Doctor	362 (77.2%)	1	
Nurse	27 (5.8%)	1	
Friend	25 (5.3%)		
Practicing of BSE	447 (41.9%)	619 (58.1%)	
If Yes (n=447)			
Regular	302 (67.6%)		
Irregular	60 (13.4%)		
As I think about it	85(19.0%)		
If No, reason (n= 619)			
I'm afraid to discover a tumor.	141 (22.8%)		
I don't have a breast complaint.	431 (69.7%)		
I don't have the time	30 (4.8%)		
I don't have enough information.	17 (2.7%)		
Clinical breast examination			
Have you ever heard a clinical breast examination?	468 (43.9%)	598 (56.1%)	
Sources (n=468)			
Media	177 (37.8%)		
Friends	8 (1.7%)		
Health workers	283 (60.5%)		
Had a clinical breast examination	400 (37.5%)	666 (62.5%)	
When (n= 400)			
In the last 2 years	291 (72.7%)		
In the last 5 years	63 (15.8%)		
I don't remember	46 (11.5%)		
If No, reason (n= 666)			
I've never heard of it.	6 (0.9%)		
Nobody suggests	13 (1.9%)		
I'm afraid of the procedure and the bad results	124 (18.7%)		
I didn't find it necessary.	40 (6.0%)	_	
I didn't have any complaints.	443 (66.5%)	_	
I was afraid of pain and discomfort.	14 (2.1%)		
Ashamed	26 (3.9%)		
Mammography			
Have information about mammography	461 (43.2%)	605 (56.8%)	
Sources (n= 461)		1	
Media	176 (38.1%)	_	
Friends	8 (1.7%)		

Table 4.5. (more).

Health care provider		
Had a mammography	374 (35.1%)	692 (64.9%)
If Yes, when (n = 374)		
In the last 2 years	286 (76.5%)	
In the last 5 years	52 (13.9%)	
I don't remember	36 (9.6%)	
If No, reason (n =692)		
Mammography cannot be accessed	23 (3.3%)	
I'm afraid of the procedure and the bad	116 (16.8%)	
results		
I didn't find it necessary.	53 (7.7%)	
I didn't have any complaints.	491 (70.9%)	
Ashamed	9 (1.3%)	

Table 4.6 shows that half of women's information about breast cancer were below 50 % similarly to risk factors.

Table 4.6. Information of women about Breast Cancer and Risk Factors.

Information on breast cancer	Yes	No	
	n (%)	n (%)	
Breast cancer is the most common cancer in women worldwide.	511 (47.9%)	555 (52.0%)	
Breast cancer can be treated.	517 (48.5%)	549 (51.5%)	
Breast cancer can be treated if detected at an early stage.	504 (47.3%)	562 (52.7%)	
Early diagnosis of breast cancer is the best chance to control the disease and provides effective treatment.	504 (47.3%)	562 (52.7%)	
Seeking medical attention for breast changes, regular breast control is essential for success in treating breast cancer.	502 (47.1%)	564 (52.9%)	
Breast cancer can affect elderly and young women.	498 (46.7%)	568 (53.3%)	
Breast cancer can affect women of all races.	497 (46.6%)	569 (53.4%)	
Breast cancer can affect women of all economic classes.	494 (46.3%)	572 (53.7%)	
Breast cancer is not an infectious disease.	496 (46.5%)	570 (53.5%)	
Participation in breast cancer screening may reduce the risk of death from breast cancer.	492 (46.2%)	574 (53.9%)	
Information on risk factors			
Breast cancer risk increases with age.	446 (41.8%)	620 (58.1%)	
Women with family history of breast cancer have a risk of developing breast cancer.	447 (41.9%)	619 (58.1%)	
An unhealthy lifestyle is a risk factor for breast cancer.	428 (40.2%)	638 (59.8%)	
Increased risk of breast cancer in women who have never given birth.	270 (25.3%)	796 (74.7%)	
Late menopause (over 55 years of age) increases the risk of breast cancer.	248 (23.3%)	818 (76.7%)	

Table 4.6. (more).

Early menarche (under 11) increases the risk of breast		
cancer.		
Removing ovaries in women reduces the risk of breast	246 (23.1%)	820 (77.0%)
cancer.		
Obesity increases the risk of breast cancer in the post-	252 (23.6%)	814 (76.4%)
menopausal period.		
Exposure to radiation at a young age in women may	296 (27.8%)	770 (72.3%)
increase the risk of BC.		
Estrogen increases the risk of breast cancer.	253 (23.7%)	813 (76.3%)
No alcohol use, healthy nutrition, healthy weight, regular	423 (39.7%)	643 (60.3%)
exercise, no hormone therapy, avoiding exposure to		
radiation and environmental pollution are important in		
preventing breast cancer.		
Swelling of the whole or part of the breast, darkening of	447(41.9%)	619 (58.0%)
the skin (such as orange peel), breast or nipple pain,		
nipple retraction (inward rotation), nipple skin red, dry,		
flaking or thickening, nipple discharge, size or changes		
in the form of breast cancer symptoms.		
Knowledge Score of Breast Cancer and risk fact	tors 8.4 ± 9.32	(0-22)

Table 4.7 shows women's information about breast cancer screening methods which include (BSE, CBE, and mammography), the correct answers which are chosen by women were below 50 %, but only 813 (76.3%) of women answered correct regarding if discovered a mass during the breast self-examination, the physician should be consulted

Table 4.7. Information on Breast Cancer Screening Methods.

Information on Breast self-examination	Yes	No	
	n (%)	n (%)	
Breast cancer screening self-examination, clinical breast examination and mammography are performed needs to be done.	447 (41.9%)	619 (58.1%)	
Self-breast examination should start at the age of 20 and should be performed once a month.	313 (29.4%)	753 (70.6%)	
The best time to perform a breast self-examination is 3 to 5 days after the end of menstruation.	350 (32.8%)	716 (67.2%)	
Self-breast examination is manual examination of breasts in front of the mirror and standing position.	474 (44.5%)	592 (55.6%)	
The position of lying in front of the mirror is started, the circular operations that will start from the nipple are controlled from the point of view of all breasts and armpits.	473 (44.4%)	593 (55.7%)	

Table 4.7. (more).

If there is a mass recovered during the examination, the physician should be consulted.			
Information on Clinical Breast Examination			
Clinical Breast Examination is a manual examination method performed by the physician.	468 (43.9%)	598 (56.1%)	
Clinical breast examination is performed every 3 years between the ages of 20-39.	299 (28.0%)	767(71.9%)	
Clinical breast examination is performed once a year after the age of 40.	301 (28.2%)	765 (71.8%)	
Information on Mammography			
Mammography is the method used in the early diagnosis of breast cancer.	467 (43.8%)	599 (56.2%)	
Mammography is a method used for imaging the breast using a low dose × ray of the breast.	442 (39.6%)	644 (60.4%)	
Women without risk factors for breast cancer should undergo a mammography scan after age 40.	304 (28.5%)	762 (71.5%)	
Mammography should start every two years until the age of 50 and be done once a year after the age of 50.	301 (28.2%)	765 (71.8%)	
Knowledge Score of Breast Cancer Screening 5.09 ± 5.44 (0-13)			

Table 4.8 Shows barriers and facilitators of breast cancer screening practices. Age, knowledge of BC and risk factors, knowledge about breast cancer screening, exposure barriers, environment barriers, and uneasiness barriers were found to be statistically significant (Cox & Snell R² = .353, -2 log-likelihood =1007.527^a, X2 =95.794; df=8, p=000) on women's BSE practice. Women were more likely to perform BSE if they knew about BC and risk factors (OR=1.172, CI=1.105-1.244), had knowledge about breast cancer screening (OR=1.574, CI=1.402 – 1.768), exposure barriers of BSE (OR=.545, CI=.440-.674), and environment barriers (OR=.571, CI=.464-.703), and uneasiness barriers (OR=.736, CI=.557 - .974). Barriers to BSE increase, the tendency of women to perform BSE decreases.

Table 4.8 shows age, knowledge of BC and risk factors, knowledge about breast cancer screening, exposure barriers, and environment barriers were found to be statistically significant (Cox & Snell R2 = .342, -2 log-likelihood = 1015.929^a, X2 = 94.765; df=8, p=000) in predicting whether women would undergo a CBE. Women were more likely to have CBE if they knew about BC and risk factors (OR=1.161, CI=1.092-1.234), and had knowledge about breast cancer screening (OR=1.474, CI=1.332-1.632). Women

were have increase in exposure barriers (OR=.553, CI=.447 - .684) and environment barriers (OR=.585, CI=.474 - .722), the odds of women to use CBE decrease.

Table 4.8 shows age, knowledge of BC and risk factors, knowledge about breast cancer screening, exposure barriers, environment barriers, and uneasiness with own body barriers were found to be statistically significant in women's mammography use (Cox & Snell R2 = .367, -2 log-likelihood = 893.249^a, X2 = 105.536; df=8, p=000). Women were more likely to have a mammography if they had knowledge about BC and risk factors (OR=1.194, CI=1.120-1.274) and knew about breast cancer screening (OR=1.486, CI=1.339-1.648). When exposure barriers (OR=.324, CI=.251-.419), environment barriers (OR=.636, CI=.500- .809), and uneasiness barriers (OR=.644, CI=.464-.893) increase, women are less likely to have a mammogram.

Table 4.8. Barriers and Facilitators of Breast Cancer Screening Practices.

Variables	B(S.E.)	p	Wald	OR	95% CI	-2 Log	Cox &
Breast Self-Examination	า					Likelihood	Snell R ²
Age	.011	.212	1.559	1.014	.992 – 1.036		
Knowledge scores BC and risk factors		.000	28.064	1.172	1.105 – 1.244	1007.527 ^a	.353
Knowledge scores BCS	.059	.000	58.925	1.574	1.402 - 1.768	_	
Exposure.B	.109	.000	31.164	.545	.440674	-	
Social.B	.150	.809	.058	1.037	.773 - 1.390	-	
Religious.B	.128	.372	.796	.892	.694 - 1.147	-	
Environment.B	.106	.000	27.911	.571	.464703	-	
Uneasiness.B	.143	.032	4.603	.736	.557974	-	
		X	²⁼ 95.794	df. 8 p. 0	00		
Clinical Breast Examina	ation						
Age	.011	.000	39.806	1.074	1.051-1.099		
Knowledge scores BC and risk factors	.031	.000	22.660	1.161	1.092-1.234	1015.929 ^a	.342
Knowledge scores of BCS	.052	.000	56.083	1.474	1.332-1.632	_	
Exposure.B	.109	.000	29.613	.553	.447684	=	
Social.B	.152	.773	.083	.957	.710 - 1.290	_	
Religious.B	.127	.442	.591	.907	.706 - 1.164	-	
Environment.B	.107	.000	24.918	.585	.474722	_	
Uneasiness.B	.145	.086	2.941	.780	.587 - 1.036		
		X	^{2 =} 94.765	df. 8 p. 0	00		
Mammography							
Age	.014	.000	69.196	1.126	1.095-1.158		
Knowledge scores BC and risk factors	0.33	.000	28.956	1.194	1.120-1.274	893.249 ^a	.367
Knowledge of scores BCS	0.53	.000	55.765	1.486	1.339-1.648	-	
Exposure.B	.131	.000	74.411	.324	.251419	_	
Social.B	.175	.291	1.115	1.203	.854 - 1.694	=	
Religious.B	.136	.270	1.215	1.162	.890 - 1.516	=	
Environmental.B	.123	.000	13.588	.636	.500809	_	
Uneasiness.B	.167	.008	6.963	.644	.464893	_	
		X^2	⁼ 105.536	df. 8 p. 0	000		
BCS: Breast car	ncer scree	ning; E	B: Barriers;	BC: Brea	ast cancer		

PART 5

DISCUSSION

Breast cancer is the highest recurrent malignancy amongst females, the incidence rate is increased to 2.3 million females and resulted from the highest rates of mortality that rated 685,000 amongst females in 2020 (Harbeck et al., 2019; GLOBOCAN, 2020). In Iraq, BC is the first cause of death-related cancer among women (Alwan et al., 2017). BCS is effective for early BC diagnosis and survival in women. However, in Iraq, the nationwide programs for BC screening are inadequate. Therefore, BCS opportunistic screening can largely increase the early detection rate of BC and improve the awareness of BC (Goodarz et al., 2020; Al-Gburi, Alwan, Al-Tameemi & Al-Dabbagh, 2021). The present study was carried out among Iraqi women to assess women's knowledge, attitude, practice towards breast cancer and screening, and to explain the influence of the Arab culture-specific barriers on women's participation in breast cancer screening.

In this study, the majority of women heard about BC and the most important source of information 65.8% from the media (Table 4.3). Similar to our study, in a study that is conducted in Turkey, it was found that 67.2% of women heard about BC from media (Yıldırım & Özaydın, 2014), on the contrary, in a study by Liu et al. (2018), it is found that friends were the main source of information about BC. On the other hand, it is reported that in some studies that health professionals were the most source of information (Dündar et al., 2006; Alharbi et al., 2012).

In the present study, about 491 (46.1%) of women have information about BSE (Table 4.5), while 61.1% in Saudi Arabia (Alomair et al., 2020), and 30.5 % in Cameroon and Ghana (Nde et al., 2015). In our study, the majority source of information about BSE 258 (52.5%) were health care providers, followed by mass media 215 (43.8%) (Table 5).

Mass-media played an important role as the vital source of information about BSE, which reported 47% in Iraq (Ewaid, Shanjar & Mahdi, 2018), while 39.8% in Saudi Arabia (Alomair et al., 2020), 52.1% in Eritrea (Kifle et al., 2016), and 50.8% in India (Sideeq, Ayoub & Sailm Khan, 2017). Similar to our study, another study from Iraq revealed that the main source of information about BSE 18.4% were doctors and 11.6% the awareness campaign of the Iraqi National Breast Cancer Research Programs (Alwan et al., 2012). According to our findings, the most source of information about performing BSE, 77.2% was doctor, also similar study in Iraq showed that 14% was getting information about performing BSE from mass media (Galary, Abdullah & Majid, 2020). Another study from Ethiopia reported that the main source of information about performing BSE were health care providers (Dinegde, Demie & Diriba, 2020). In our study and other studies shown that media and health care providers such as doctors and nurses have a significant role as the main source of information about BSE. In our study, the majority of the women 619 (58.1%) did not practice BSE (Table 4.5), while 64.2% in Malaysia (Sheikh Alaudeen & Ganesan, 2019), 37 % in Iraq (Al-Alwan et al., 2019), and 30% in Turkey (Bilge & Keskin, 2013). 447 (41.9%) of women in our findings practiced BSE, only 302 (67.6%) were regular, 60 (13.4%) were irregular, 85 (19.0%) were as they think about it (Table 4.5). It is reported in the studies from Iraq about the practice of BSE among women were 30.3% (Hasan et al., 2015), 53.9% (Alwan et al., 2012), 57.4% (Alwan, Al-Diwan, Al-Attar & Eliessa, 2012), 48.3% (Alwan et al., 2012), 27.6% irregular (Salman & Abass, 2015), 18.0% regular (Shakor, Mohammed & Karotia, 2019), and 6.5% regular, 16.5% irregular (Galary, Abdullah & Majid, 2020). A similar study done in Turkey found that 81.3 % of women practice BSE, only 27.3 % regularly (Akpınar et al., 2011). Another study from Malaysia showed that 47.2% of women practice BSE regularly (Al-Naggar, Bobryshev & Al-Jashamy, 2012). The reason for the different rate is related to the large population in our study. However, shown that the practice of BSE is low, it is below 50%, especially practice of BSE on an irregular basis. In this study, the reason of women who not practiced BSE, majority of them 431 (69.7%) not having a breast complaint, 141 (22.8%) were afraid to discover a tumor, 30 (4.8%) were not having time, 17 (2.7%) were lack of information (Table 4.5). Similar to our study, the study from Iraq found that 42% were lack of knowledge and 39.5% lack of confidence in their ability to perform BSE (timidity, lack of time, or fear of discovering cancer

(Alwan et al., 2012). Another study done in Turkey found that 45.8 % of women not find it necessary (Akpınar et al., 2011). There is a study from Iran, discovered that 64% was due to the fact that they did not know how to do BSE (Montazeri et al., 2008). Our study and other studies that have been conducted in this regard, have shown that practice of BSE is low which is related to different reasons. We found that Iraqi women have low information, and practice towards BCS especially BSE, our finding is also supported by the other previous studies.

In the current study, 468 (43.9%) of women heard about CBE (Table 4.5), while in the study from China was 70%-90% (Kwok & Fong, 2014), and 85.8% in Saudi Arabia (Heena et al., 2019). In this study, the majority source 283 (60.5%) were health workers, 177 (37.8%) was media, and 8 (1.7%) were friends (Table 4.5). In a study from Saudi Arabia, sources of information were educational campaigns and media (AL-Mulhim et al., 2018). Another study from Nepal was Radio/TV (Shrestha et al., 2012), a similar study done in Iran, showed that 48 % was media (Montazeri et al., 2008). It seems that Iraqi women's heard about CBE was lower than other studies' rates. In our study and other studies have shown that the most source of information about CBE were media and health workers which play a vital role to increase awareness of women regarding BCS especially CBE. In the current study, the majority of women 666 (62.5%) not had CBE (Table 4.5), similar to a study in Taiwan, showed that more than 50% of women did not have CBE (Chen & Wu, 2017), 44.8% in the United Arab Emirates (Elobaid, Aw, Grivna & Nagelkerk, 2014), and 81.9% in Kuwait (Alharbi et al., 2012). The majority of women who not had CBE may be related to young age or not having breast problems. 400 (37.5%) of women in our study had CBE, women's who had CBE, 291 (72.7%) were in the last 2 years, 63 (15.8%) were in the last 5 years, 46 (11.5%) they don't remember (Table 5), while 0.9% in Tanzania (Morse, Maegga, Joseph & Miesfeldt, 2014), 40.2% in Iraq (Amin, Babakir-Mina, Mohialdeen & Gubari, 2017), 24.8% in Turkey (Akpınar et al., 2011), 37.8% annually in China (Kwok & Fong, 2014), and 46.6% in Ethiopia (Wurjine, Bogale & Menji, 2017). In this study, the reason of women who not had CBE, majority of them 443 (66.5%) not having breast complaints, followed by 124 (18.7%) they afraid of the procedure and the bad results, 40 (6.0%) didn't find it necessary, 26 (3.9%) were ashamed, 14 (2.1%) were afraid of pain and discomfort, 13 (1.9%) were nobody

suggests, and 6 (0.9%) were they have never heard of it (Table 4.5). Similar to our study findings, it was reported in the studies that most reasons of women who not had CBE were not having breast complaints, followed by fear of the bad results, lack of knowledge, and they didn't find it necessary (Elobaid, Aw, Grivna & Nagelkerk, 2014; Islama et al., 2016; Izanloo et al., 2018; Amin, Babakir-Mina, Mohialdeen & Gubari, 2017). The other studies and our study findings showed that women's rate of BCS was low which is probably related to having wrong information about CBE, religious factors, and cultural factors such as shame and embarrassment.

In our study, about 461 (43.2%) of women have information about mammography (Table 4.5), while 95.1% in Palestine (Nazzal et al., 2016), 7.4% in Brazil (Marinho, Cecatti, Osis & Gurge, 2008), and 46.8% in Iraq (Mohammed et al., 2018). In this study, the majority source of information about mammography 277 (60.2%) were health workers, 176 (38.1%) was media, and 8 (1.7%) were friends (Table 4.5). While, 23.9% was media in Egypt (Manzour & Eldin, 2019), and 27.8% in Saudi Arabia (AL-Mulhim et al., 2018). Another study from Nigeria, reported that newspapers and magazines were most important sources of information about mammography (Obajimi et al., 2013). In our study findings showed that Iraqi women may have insufficient knowledge about mammography or what they thought. In our study majority of women 692 (64.9%) not had mammography (Table 4.5), while, 44.1% in the United Arab Emirates (Elobaid, Aw, Grivna & Nagelkerk, 2014), and 12.8% in Saudi Arabia (Al-Mulhim et al., 2001), also in a similar study in Taiwan, showed that most of women not had mammography screening (Chen &Wu, 2017). In the present study, 374 (35.1%) of women had mammography, the women who had mammography, 286 (76.5%) were in the last 2 years, 52 (13.9%) were in the last 5 years, 36 (9.6%) they don't remember (Table 5), while 10.1% in Turkey (Akpınar et al., 2011), 50% in Palestine were had at least one mammogram, only 21% had regularly (Nazzal et al., 2016), 35.7% in Brazil (Marinho, Cecatti, Osis & Gurge, 2008), 70% in the US, among immigrant Muslim at least once, only 52% within the past 2 years (Hasnain, Menon, Ferrans & Szalacha, 2014), 35% in Turkey, 42% were in the last 2 years (Özmen et al., 2016), 40% in Saudi Arabia (Al-Wassia, Farsi, Merdad & Hagi, 2017), 7.8% in China (Kim et al., 2011), 4.5% in India was in the last one year (S, Kollipaka & R, 2015), and 0.9 % regularly in Iraq (Mohammed et al., 2018). In this study, the reasons of women who not had mammography, majority of them 491 (70.9%) not having breast complaints, followed by 116 (16.8%) they afraid of the procedure and the bad results, 53 (7.7%) didn't find it necessary, 23 (3.3%) said mammography cannot be accessed, and 9 (1.3%) were ashamed (Table 4.5). Also similar to study in Iraq, the most reason was not having breast complain (Al Alwan, Al Attar, Al Mallah, 2016), while 46.7% were busy, followed by the lack of perceived susceptibility 41.5% in Palestine (Nazzal et al., 2016), and 81.8% in Brazil, was lack of referral by physicians working at the health center (Marinho, Cecatti, Osis & Gurge, 2008). Another study from Uganda was lack of information (Elsie et al., 2010). In a study from Turkey, 75% was they didn't know it was necessary (Özmen et al., 2016), which is consistent with a study in china (Kim et al., 2011). In a similar study conducted in Egypt, 77% were unwilling to have a mammogram until it was recommended by the doctor, lack of privacy, and 64.6% blamed the cost of services (Mamdouh et al., 2014). Another study from Turkey was no health insurance and lived in a district or a village (Ersin & Polat, 2015). Women's not having any breast problems may be the cause to not have a mammogram screening.

In our study, it is revealed that half of the women's information about breast cancer was below 50 % similar to risk factors (Table 4.6). Similar to our study finding, it was reported in the studies that women had low knowledge about BC and risk factors (Subramanian et al., 2013; Elsie et al., 2010; Gangane, Ng & Sebastián, 2015). However, this was inconsistent with our findings with a study from Abu Dhabi revealed that women's had a high level of knowledge about BC and risk factors (Al Blooshi et al, 2019). The findings of the present study for information of women's about breast cancer screening methods which include (BSE, CBE, and mammography) showed that the correct answers which are chosen by women were below 50 % (Table 4.7), similar to our study findings, it was reported in the study by Heena et al. (2019), low level of women's knowledge regard breast cancer screening, however inconsistent to our findings, it was reported in the studies that women's had a high level of knowledge (Safarpour et al., 2018; Gemici et al., 2020). On the other hand in our study, only 813 (76.3%) of women answered correctly regarding if discovered a mass during the breast self-examination, the physician should be consulted (Table 4.7), which was consistent with the results of a study conducted by Gilani et al. (2010), which reported

the majority of women >90% intended to see a doctor immediately if they ever felt a breast mass. On the other hand, another study from Iraq reported that only 0.8% of women thought that having breast lump does not draw attention (Al-Eessa & Al-Attar, 2018).

Breast self-examination is the manual examination of breasts by women considered a vital method of BC screening to detect early breast cancer (Dagne, Ayele & Assefa, 2019). This study's results indicate that age, knowledge of BC and risk factors, knowledge about breast cancer screening, exposure barriers, environment barriers, and uneasiness with own body barriers were found to be statistically significant on women's BSE practices (Table 8). Women were more likely to perform BSE if they had knowledge about BC and risk factors, and knowledge about breast cancer screening. Similar to our findings, a study from the UK among South Asian females revealed a lack of knowledge of women influence BSE practice (Karbani et al., 2011). According to our findings exposure barriers, environment barriers, uneasiness with own body barriers influence Iraqi women to perform BSE (Table 4.8). Exposure barriers, environment barriers, and uneasiness own body barriers to BSE increase, the tendency of women to perform BSE decreases. Consistent with our study results, it was reported in the study from Indonesia among non-Arab Muslim women showed that exposure barriers were an important factor of women which affect the practice of BSE, and this feature may make the belief that the breast is an intimate, private organ, not to be openly talk about it. These features might lead to protecting thoughts and hesitancy to think about performing BSE, for that reason, it is considered a not comfortable method (Dewi, Massar, Ruiter& Leonardi, 2019). Consistent with our study results, it was reported in the studies (Karbani et al., 2011; Al-Attar, Abdul Sattar, Al Mallah & Wardia, 2016) that environment barriers was affected women's practice which involves communication problems with healthcare professionals and within the family, limited resources and lack of access to medical facilities, concern about personal safety during traveling to medical centers, difficulty in reaching the medical centers, and cost of the examinations. It means related to culture, it is very significant to women and societies. The influence of culture on opinions and performances with regard to screenings for early detection of BC. Researchers at a previous documented the importance of the learning about the particular effects of culture on health and health behavior and of cultural populations, in order to improve professionals' cultural performances and consequently decrease health disparities. Similar to our study finding, it was reported in the studies (Akhtari-Zavare et al., 2015; Das & Moharana, 2019) that uneasiness own body barriers which involve embarrassment at looking and touching their body in addition, not having enough privacy to examine their body were the most important barriers to not practicing BSE.

Clinical breast examination is one of the essential methods of BC screening and it is a physical examination method performed by professional health care to identify the various conditions of breast abnormalities (Veitch et al., 2019). In our study results indicate that age, knowledge of BC and risk factors, knowledge about breast cancer screening, exposure barriers, and environment barriers were found to be statistically significant in predicting whether women would undergo CBE (Table 4.8). Women were more likely to have CBE if they knew about BC and risk factors and had knowledge about breast cancer screening. According to our study results exposure barriers, environment barriers influence Iraqi women toward undergo of CBE (Table 4.8). Women had an increase in exposure barriers and environment barriers the odds to use CBE decrease. Consistent with our study findings, it was reported in the studies (Kawar et al., 2013; Alwan, Alattar, Al Mallah & Hassoun, 2015; Kwok, Endrawes & Lee, 2016) that exposure barriers were the important barriers of women to not had CBE, women commonly have embarrassment due to modesty regarding an exam by a male physician, refuse to expose their breasts, and need to cover their body or breast. Similar to our study results, it was reported in the studies (Banning et al., 2009; Kawar et al., 2013) that environment barriers were important barriers that expressed being difficult to understand the language when it includes medical words, distance and accessibility of the clinics, and financial issues. In our study findings, environment barriers were influence women to had CBE but in another study among Iraqi women, refugees showed that environment barriers were not influenced women to had CBE such as language problems, no health insurance, and transportation (Saadi, Bond & Percac-Lima, 2012). Another barrier not found in our study was religious barriers among women which frequently look for help from religious scholars when they have a tumour in their breast instead of examination by health care providers. Religious scholars supply women a spiritual instruction and reading religious writings which

assist in healing (Banning et al., 2009). Another barrier which not found in our study findings were social barriers, it is one of the essential barriers of women to not had CBE which involve common themes were BC is a taboo issue, a shame, and BC in the family had ramifications about the likelihood of the future event occurring on children's when getting married and might be reason to a breakdown of marriage life (Karbani et al., 2011). Another study related to social barriers of women conducted by Abdel-Aziz et al. (2017) showed that the social stigma of BC turned about a failure of BC understanding, afraid of BC screening participation, especially CBE may lead to getting the illness (BC), and bring embarrassment to the family.

Mammography screening is the most important method for BC screening and considered the international gold standard for detecting early BC (Shen, Winget & Yan Yuan, 2017). Our findings indicate that age, knowledge of BC and risk factors, knowledge about breast cancer screening, exposure barriers, environment barriers, and uneasiness with own body barriers were found to be statistically significant in women's mammography screening (Table 4.8). Women were more likely to have mammography if they had knowledge about BC and risk factors and knew about breast cancer screening. Similar to our study findings in the study conducted by Azaiza et al., (2010) showed that lack of knowledge influence women's participation in mammography screening. According to our study results that exposure barriers, environment barriers, and uneasiness with own body barriers increase, women are less likely to have a mammography screening. Consistent with our study results, it was reported in the studies that exposure barriers influence women's participation in mammography screening (Crawford, Frisina, Hack & Parascandalo, 2015; Vahabi, Lofters, Kumar & Glazier, 2015). Similar to our study findings, it was reported in the studies (Azaiza, Cohen, Awad, & Daoud, 2010; Crawford, Frisina, Hack & Parascandalo, 2015; Tuzcu &Bahar, 2015) that environmental barriers by the women which influence mammography screening included transportation problems, inaccessibility of the mammography facility, cost of examination, difficulty reaching, and insufficient health insurance. Consistent with our study results, it was reported in the studies that uneasiness with own body by women which breasts are seen as an organ that would be hidden and not talk clearly. Women do not want to talk or check their breasts because they feel embarrassed, not comfortable, and shy when discussing

them which is an impression deep-seated in women's mind to not touch their bodies needlessly which are taught about it from childhood (Banning et al., 2009). In our study, religious barriers were not found but it was reported in the studies (Azaiza, Cohen, Awad, & Daoud, 2010; Kawar et al., 2013) that religion barriers, which involves harbored fatalistic opinions about relating BC to God's willpower. Women powerfully thought that BCS participation especially mammography will not protect them or change their future from BC, conversely, would rank them nonbelievers in Allah's power and wisdom for that reason they described that screening was not a part of their health care behaviors and they did not perceive the essential to go to health care providers for screening when there are no symptoms thus these beliefs keep them from participating in screening. In another study from Ghana showed that Muslim females were found to have low participation in BC screening when compared to Christian females, which highlights how religious belief play an significant role in deciding a female's breast health and the need to consider how religious and cultural habits in subpopulations may influence a female's consultation for breast health and BCS participation (Gyedu et al., 2018). Another barriers were social barriers which not found in our study findings while found in a study among Pakistani women, reported that women which do not make known a diagnosis of BC to persons who are out of the close-knit family, furthermore, BC is frequently observed as a socially not acceptable illness which may result in a negative reaction from family memberships. As a result, females might be frustrated from looking for medical therapy for the BC or they may try to hide the diagnosis as the disease will influence all family members for that reason they are not participating in mammography screening (Banning et al., 2009). On the other hand a study from Iraq showed that 47 % of women reported that being anxious about separation if diagnosed with BC, as a result they are afraid to participate in mammography screening (Al-Attar, Abdul Sattar, Al Mallah & Wardia, 2016).

PART 6

CONCLUSION

The present study was conducted to assess women's knowledge, attitude, practice towards breast cancer and screening, and to explain the influence of the Arab culture-specific barriers on women's participation in breast cancer screening. The results of this study revealed that the level of knowledge about BC, risk factors, and BCS were low, and their practice was unsatisfactory. In our study findings, the barriers among Iraqi women for not practicing BSE included exposure barriers, environment barriers, and uneasiness with own body barriers. The main barriers for not performing CBE involve exposure barriers and environment barriers. In addition, the major barriers for not having mammography screening consist of exposure barriers, environment barriers, and uneasiness with own body barriers.

We recommend to increase knowledge and participate in BCS programs, healthcare providers may reach women in doubling their lack and incorrect knowledge regard BC and screening and, organizing training programs to highlight the importance of BCS, also media can have a vital role in regard to that as it is the most useful and accessible tool for women. Also culturally sensitive educational campaigns with the help of media should be organized and led by healthcare professionals for spreading information about BC and screening and the importance of early detection among Iraqi women to promote BCS.

REFERENCES

- 1. (2021). Retrieved 17 March 2021, from https://www.jognn.org/action/showPdf?pii=S0884-2175%2817%2930342-8.
- 2. (2021). Retrieved 17 March 2021, from https://www.who.int/cancer/PRGlobocanFinal.
- 3. (2021). Retrieved 17 March 2021, from https://gco.iarc.fr/today/data/factsheets/populations/368-iraq-fact-sheets.pdf.
- 4. (2021). Retrieved 17 March 2021, from https://www.iarc.who.int/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/pr292_E.pdf.%20https://gco.iarc.fr/today/data/factsheets/cancers/20-Breast-fact-sheet.
- 5. (2010). Retrieved 17 March 2021, from https://reliefweb.int/sites/reliefweb.int/files/resources/807BB72D0720CCC2C12577EB004F80BB-Full_Report.pdf.
- 6. Abdel-Aziz, S. B., Amin, T. T., Al-Gadeeb, M. B., Alhassar, A. I., Al-Ramadan, A., Al-Helal, M., Bu-Mejdad, M., Al-Hamad, L. A., & Alkhalaf, E. H. (2017). Perceived Barriers to Breast Cancer Screening among Saudi Women at Primary Care Setting. Asian Pacific journal of cancer prevention: APJCP, 18(9), 2409–2417. https://doi.org/10.22034/APJCP.2017.18.9.2409.F.
- 7. Abdelaziz, S., Salem, D., Zaki, H., & Suzan Atteya, S. (2015). Nurse's Role in Early Detection of Breast Cancer through Mammography and Genetic Screening and Its Impact on Patient's Outcome. International Scholarly and Scientific Research & Innovation, 9(2), 155-162.
- 8. Abdulla, K., Alwan, N., Al-Attar, W., & Mallah, N. (2016). Effects of awareness and knowledge on breast cancer among intellectuals affiliated to an Iraqi Ministry. International Journal of Scientific and Research Publications, 6(4), 730-733.
- 9. Abedalrahman, S., Ali, B., Al-Khalidy, N., & Al-Hashimi, A. (2019). Risk factors of breast cancer among Iraqi women. J Contemp Med Sci, 5(3), 149–153. Retrieved from http://www.jocms.org/index.php/jcms/article/view/609/296.
- 10. Abedalrahman, S., Abid Issa Al-Khalidy, N., & K. Al-Diwan, J. (2019). Advanced Stage at Diagnosis Among Iraqi Breast Cancer Women. Sudan Journal of Medical Sciences. Doi: 10.18502/sjms.v14i2.4690.

- 11. Abood, R. A., Abdahmed, K. A., & Mazyed, S. S. (2020). Epidemiology of Different Types of Cancers Reported in Basra, Iraq. Sultan Qaboos University medical journal, 20(3), e295–e300. https://doi.org/10.18295/squmj.2020.20.03.008.
- 12. Ahmadinejad, M., Hajimaghsoudi, L., Pouryaghobi, S. M., Ahmadinejad, I., & Ahmadi, K. (2017). Diagnostic Value of Fine-Needle Aspiration Biopsies and Pathologic Methods for Benign and Malignant Breast Masses and Axillary Node Assessment. Asian Pacific journal of cancer prevention: APJCP, 18(2), 541–548. https://doi.org/10.22034/APJCP.2017.18.2.541.
- 13. Ahmed, D., Ruanduzy, L., & Yousif, P. (2016). Breast Cancer among Women of Erbil, northern region of Iraq. International Journal of Advanced Research, 4(9), 214-221. DOI: 10.21474/ijar01/1475.
- 14. Ahmed, H. (2016). Ethnopharmacobotanical study on the medicinal plants used by herbalists in Sulaymaniyah Province, north of Iraq. Journal of Ethnobiology and Ethnomedicine, 12(1). Doi: 10.1186/s13002-016-0081-3.
- 15. Akhtari-Zavare, M., Juni, M. H., Ismail, I. Z., Said, S. M., & Latiff, L. A. (2015). Barriers to breast self-examination practice among Malaysian female students: a cross sectional study. SpringerPlus, 4, 692. https://doi.org/10.1186/s40064-015-1491-8.
- 16. Akpınar, Y., Baykan, Z., Naçar, M., Gün, İ., & Çetinkaya, F. (2011). Knowledge, Attitude about Breast Cancer and Practice of Breast Cancer Screening among Female Health Care Professionals: A Study from Turkey. Asian Pacific Journal of Cancer Prevention, 12, 3063-3068. Retrieved fromhttps://www.researchgate.net/publication/221680939_Knowledge_Attitud e_about_Breast_Cancer_and_Practice_of_Breast_Cancer_Screening_among_F emale_Health_Care_Professionals_A_Study_From_Turkey.
- 17. Akram, M., Iqbal, M., Daniyal, M., & Khan, A. U. (2017). Awareness and current knowledge of breast cancer. Biological research, 50(1), 33. https://doi.org/10.1186/s40659-017-0140-9.
- 18. Al Ameen, M., Rajab, K., Ali, B., & Al Diwan, J. (2020). Screening Motives among Attendants of Breast Cancer-Early Detection Clinics, in Iraq. Indian Journal of Forensic Medicine & Toxicology, 14(1), 637-640. Doi: 10.37506/ijfmt.v14i1.122.
- 19. Al Blooshi, N., Al Mazrouei, R., Al Razooqi, H., Darwish, E., Al Fahim, M., & Khan, F. (2019). Knowledge, Attitudes and Practices Related to Breast Cancer Screening among Women Visiting Primary Care Centers in Abu Dhabi. World Family Medicine Journal/Middle East Journal of Family Medicine, 18(1), 5-15. Doi: 10.5742/mewfm.2020.93723.

- Al-Attar, W., Abdul Sattar, S., Al Mallah, N., & Wardia, W. (2016). Factors Influencing Mammography Participation in Iraqi Women. IOSR Journal of Nursing and Health Science (IOSR-JNHS), 5(5), 43-49. Retrieved from https://www.researchgate.net/publication/314066044 Factors Influencing Ma mmography Participation in Iraqi Women.
- 21. Alawad, A. (2018). Management of Breast Cancer in Developing Countries. Austin Journal of Surgery, 5(4).
- 22. Aldujaily, E., Duabil, A., Zwain, K., Fatlaw, H., Al-Behadili, A., & Al saabery, E. et al. (2020). Pattern and distribution of cancers in areas of Iraq exposed to Depleted Uranium. Https://Www.Medrxiv.Org/Sites/Default/Files/Medrxiv_Homepage_Logo.Png, 7(1), 867-877.
- 23. Al-Eessa, R., & Al-Attar, W. (2018). Breast Cancer Knowledge, Attitude, Concepts and Related Effect of Education among Iraqi Women in Baghdad. International Journal of Science and Research (IJSR), 17(5), 60-67. Doi: 10.21275/art20164498.
- 24. Al-Gburi, A., Alwan, N., Al-Tameemi, E., & Al-Dabbagh, W. (2021). Opportunistic Screening for Early Detection of Breast Cancer in Iraq. International Medical Journal, 28(1), 28- 32. Retrieved from https://www.researchgate.net/publication/348687907 Opportunistic Screening for Early Detection of Breast Cancer in Iraq Iraq/link/600af347a6fdccdc b87068af/download.
- 25. Alharbi, N., Alshammari, M., Almutairi, B., Makboul, G., & El-Shazly, M. (2012). Knowledge, awareness, and practices concerning breast cancer among Kuwaiti female school teachers. Alexandria Journal of Medicine, 48(1), 75-82. Doi: 10.1016/j.ajme.2011.10.003.
- 26. Al-Isawi, A. (2016). Breast Cancer in Western Iraq: Clinicopathological Single Institution Study. Advances in Breast Cancer Research, 05(02), 83-89. DOI: 10.4236/abcr.2016.52009.
- 27. Alkhazrajy, L., & Souza, A. (2018). Effectiveness and Results of Iraqi Breast Cancer Screening Program Applied at Primary Health Care Centers. International Journal of Medical Research & Health Sciences, 7(10), 91-102.
- 28. Al-Mulhim F. A. (2001). Knowledge and attitude towards screening mammography among 400 women in the eastern province of Saudi Arabia. Journal of family & community medicine, 8(3), 73–78.
- 29. AL-Mulhim, F., Bakr, R., Almedallah, D., Alkaltham, N., Alotaibi, A., & Alnoaim, S. (2018). Screening mammography and breast self-examination: Attitudes and practices of women in the Eastern Province of Saudi Arabia. Saudi Journal for Health Sciences, 7(2), 89. Doi: 10.4103/sjhs.sjhs_4_18.

- 30. Al-Naggar, R. A., Bobryshev, Y. V., & Al-Jashamy, K. (2012). Practice of breast self-examination among women in Malaysia. Asian Pacific journal of cancer prevention:

 APJCP, 13(8),

 https://doi.org/10.7314/apjcp.2012.13.8.3829.
- 31. Alomair, A., Felemban, D., Felemban, M., Awadain, J., Altowairqi, A., & Alfawzan, N. et al. (2020). Knowledge, attitude, and practice of breast self-examination toward breast cancer among female students at King Saud University in Riyadh, Saudi Arabia. International Journal of Medicine in Developing Countries, 429-434. Doi: 10.24911/ijmdc.51-1576668182.
- 32. Al-Sader, H., Abdul-Jabar, H., Allawic, Z., & Habad, Y. (2009). Alcohol and Breast Cancer: The Mechanisms Explained. Journal of Clinical Medicine Research. Doi: 10.4021/jocmr2009.07.1246.
- 33. Al-Alwan, N., & Mualla, F. (2014). Promoting Clinical Breast Examination as A screening Tool for Breast Cancer in Iraq. Iraqi National Journal Of Nursing Specialties,, 27(1), 76-82. Retrieved from https://www.iasj.net/iasj/download/12d4fcf3b448dfbf.
- 34. Alwan N. (2016). Breast Cancer among Iraqi Women: Preliminary Findings from a Regional Comparative Breast Cancer Research Project. Journal of global oncology, 2(5), 255–258. https://doi.org/10.1200/JGO.2015.003087.
- 35. Alwan, N., & Tawfeeq, F. N. (2019). Comparison of Clinico-Pathological Presentations of Triple-Negative versus Triple-Positive and HER2 Iraqi Breast Cancer Patients. Open access Macedonian journal of medical sciences, 7(21), 3534–3539. https://doi.org/10.3889/oamjms.2019.808.
- 36. Alwan, N., Al-Attar, W., & Al Mallah, N. (2017). Baseline Needs Assessment for Breast Cancer Awareness among Patients in Iraq. International Journal of Science and Research (IJSR), 6(1), 2088-2093. Doi: 10.21275/art20164498.
- 37. Alwan, N., Alattar, W., Al Mallah, N., & Hassoun, T. (2017). Baseline Needs Assessment for Breast Cancer Awareness and Management among Paramedical Health Care Providers in Iraq. International Journal of Science and Research, 6(7), 1515-1520.
- 38. Alwan, N., Al-Attar, W., Eliessa, R., Madfaie, Z., & Tawfeeq, F. (2012). Knowledge, attitude and practice regarding breast cancer and breast self-examination among a sample of the educated population in Iraq. Eastern Mediterranean Health Journal, 18(4), 337-345. Doi: 10.26719/2012.18.4.337.
- 39. Alwan, N., Al-Diwan, J., Al-Attar, W., & Eliessa, R. (2012). Knowledge, attitude & practice towards breast cancer & breast self-examination in Kirkuk University, Iraq. Asian Pacific Journal of Reproduction, 1(4), 308-311. DOI: 10.1016/s2305-0500(13)60098-6.

- 40. Alwan, N., ElAttar, W., ElEissa, R., ElMadfaei, Z., & Nedal, F. (2012). Knowledge and practices of women in Iraqi universities on breast self examination. Eastern Mediterranean Health Journal, 18(7), 742-748. Doi: 10.26719/2012.18.7.742.
- 41. Alwan, N., Kerr, D., Al-Okati, D., Pezella, F., & Tawfeeq, F. (2018). Comparative Study on the Clinicopathological Profiles of Breast Cancer among Iraqi and British Patients. The Open Public Health Journal, 11(1), 177-191. Doi: 10.2174/1874944501811010177'.
- 42. Alwan, N., Tawfeeq, F., & Mallah, N. (2019). Demographic and clinical profiles of female patients diagnosed with breast cancer in Iraq. Http://Www.Jocms.Org/Index.Php/Jcms/Index, 5(1), 14-19.
- 43. Alwan, N., Tawfeeq, F., Maallah, M., Sattar, S., & Saleh, W. (2017). The Stage of Breast Cancer at the Time of Diagnosis: Correlation with the Clinicopathological Findings among Iraqi Patients. Journal of Neoplasm, 02(03). DOI: 10.21767/2576-3903.100020.
- 44. Alwan, N., Tawfeeq, F., Sattar, S., & Yihya, F. (2019). Assessing the Period between Diagnosis of Breast Cancer and Surgical Treatment among Mastectomized Female Patients in Iraq. International Journal of Medical Research & Health Sciences, 8(1), 43-50.
- 45. Al Alwan, N. (2015). Establishing National Guidelines for eraly Detection of Breast Cancer in Iraq: Clinical Implications and Perspectives. International Journal of Advanced Research (, 3(12), 539 555.
- 46. Al Alwan, N., Al Attar, W., & Al Mallah, N. (2016). Barriers to Baseline Needs for Early Detection of Breast Cancer among Iraqi Female Patients. Iraqi National Journal of Nursing Specialties, 29(2), 1-11.
- 47. Al-Alwan, N., Al-Mallah, N., Awn, A., Khalef, T., & Tariq, S. (2019). The Actual Practice of Breast Self-Examination among Sample of Iraqi Patients with Breast Cancer. AL-Kindy College Medical Journal, 15(2), 28-34. Doi: 10.47723/kcmj.v15i2.157
- 48. Al-Wassia, R., Farsi, N., Merdad, L., & Hagi, S. (2017). Patterns, knowledge and barriers of mammography use among women in Saudi Arabia. Saudi Medical Journal, 38(9), 913-921. Doi: 10.15537/smj.2017.9.20842.
- 49. Azaiza, F., Cohen, M., Awad, M., & Daoud, F. (2010). Factors associated with low screening for breast cancer in the Palestinian Authority: relations of availability, environmental barriers, and cancer-related fatalism. Cancer, 116(19), 4646–4655. https://doi.org/10.1002/cncr.25378.
- 50. AlZubaidi, M. (2014). The Incidence of Breast Cancer in Iraq Population. European Journal of Biomedical AND Pharmaceutical, 10(1), 99-106.

- 51. Amin, B., Babakir-Mina, M., Mohialdeen, F., & Gubari, M. (2017). Knowledge, Attitude and Practice toward Breast Cancer among Kurdish Women in Sulaimani Governorate/ Iraq. Northe of Iraq Journal of Applied Research, 2(2), 20-28. DOI: 10.24017/science.2017.2.1.
- 52. Amjad, A., Khan, I., Kausar, Z., Saeed, F., Azhar, L., & Anwar, P. (2018). Risk Factors in Breast Cancer Progression and Current Advances in Therapeutic Approaches to Knockdown Breast Cancer. Clinical & Medical Biochemistry, 04(01), 2-7. Doi: 10.4172/2471-2663.1000137.
- 53. Andsoy, I., & Gul, A. (2014). Breast, Cervix, and Colorectal Cancer Knowledge among Nurses in Turkey. Asian Pacific Journal of Cancer Prevention, 15(5), 2267-2272. DOI: 10.7314/apjcp.2014.15.5.2267.
- 54. Angahar, L. (2017). An Overview of Breast Cancer Epidemiology, Risk Factors, Pathophysiology, and Cancer Risks Reduction. MOJ Biology and Medicine, 1(4). Doi: 10.15406/mojbm.2017.01.00019
- 55. Angeli, D., Salvi, S., & Tedaldi, G. (2020). Genetic Predisposition to Breast and Ovarian Cancers: How Many and Which Genes to Test? International Journal of Molecular Sciences, 21(3), 1128. Doi: 10.3390/ijms21031128
- 56. Ayran, G., Firat, M., Kucukakca, G., Cuneydioglu, B., Tahta, K., & Avci, E. (2017). The Effect of Peer Education upon Breast Self-Examination Behaviors and Self-Esteem among University Students. European Journal of Breast Health, 13(3), 138-144. Doi: 10.5152/tjbh.2016.3264
- 57. Badu-Peprah, A., & Adu-Sarkodie, Y. (2018). Accuracy of clinical diagnosis, mammography and ultrasonography in preoperative assessment of breast cancer. Ghana medical journal, 52(3), 133–139. https://doi.org/10.4314/gmj.v52i3.5
- 58. Banning, M., & Hafeez, H. (2009). Perceptions of breast health practices in Pakistani Muslim women. Asian Pacific journal of cancer prevention: APJCP, 10(5), 841–847.
- 59. Barlow, W., Lehman, C., Zheng, Y., Ballard-Barbash, R., Yankaskas, B., & Cutter, G. et al. (2002). Performance of Diagnostic Mammography for Women with Signs or Symptoms of Breast Cancer. Journal of the National Cancer Institute, 94(15), 1151-1159.
- 60. Bellanger, M., Zeinomar, N., Tehranifar, P., & Terry, M. (2018). Are Global Breast Cancer Incidence and Mortality Patterns Related to Country-Specific Economic Development and Prevention Strategies? Journal of Global Oncology, (4), 1-16. Doi: 10.1200/jgo.17.00207.
- 61. Berg, W. (2009). Tailored Supplemental Screening for Breast Cancer: What Now and What Next? American Journal of Roentgenology, 192(2), 390-399. Doi: 10.2214/ajr.08.1706

- 62. Bick, U., Trimboli, R., Athanasiou, A., Balleyguier, C., Baltzer, P., & Bernathova, M. et al. (2020). Image-guided breast biopsy and localisation: recommendations for information to women and referring physicians by the European Society of Breast Imaging. Insights into Imaging, 11(1). Doi: 10.1186/s13244-019-0803-x
- 63. Bilge, U., & Keskin, A. (2014). Breast Cancer Screening Knowledge in a Turkish Population Education is Necessary. Procedia Social and Behavioral Sciences, 116, 1861-1863. Doi: 10.1016/j.sbspro.2014.01.484
- 64. Bojanic, K., Vukadin, S., Grgic, K., Malenica, L., Sarcevic, F., & Smolic, R. et al. (2020). The accuracy of breast cancer risk self-assessment does not correlate with knowledge about breast cancer and knowledge and attitudes towards primary chemoprevention. Preventive Medicine Reports, 20, 101229. Doi: 10.1016/j.pmedr.2020.101229
- 65. Boyle, P., & Boffetta, P. (2009). Alcohol consumption and breast cancer risk. Breast Cancer Research, 11(S3). Doi: 10.1186/bcr2422
- 66. Breast Cancer Screening. (2017). Nursing For Women's Health, 21(5), 409-410. Doi: 10.1016/s1751-4851(17)30269-6.
- 67. Breast cancer. (2018). Retrieved 23 June 2020, from https://www.who.int/cancer/prevention/diagnosis-screening/breast-cancer/en/
- 68. Buccimazza, I. (2010). Approach to the Diagnosis of a Breast Lump. Http://Www.Cmej.Org.Za/Index.Php/Cmej, 28(11), 515-518.
- 69. Calhoun, K., & Anderson, B. (2014). Needle Biopsy for Breast Cancer Diagnosis: A Quality Metric for Breast Surgical Practice. Journal of Clinical Oncology, 32(21), 2191-2192. Doi: 10.1200/jco.2014.55.6324
- 70. Cancer. (2021). Retrieved 14 March 2021, from https://www.who.int/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/cancer
- 71. Cardoso, F., Kyriakides, S., Ohno, S., Penault-Llorca, F., Poortmans, P., & Rubio, I. et al. (2019). Early breast cancer: ESMO Clinical Practice Guidelines for diagnosis, treatment and follow-up. Annals of Oncology, 30(10), 1674. Doi: 10.1093/annonc/mdz189)
- 72. Challinor J, Galassi A, Al-Ruzzieh M, Bigirimana J, Buswell L, So W. et al. Nursing's Potential to Address the Growing Cancer Burden in Low- and Middle-Income Countries. Journal of Global Oncology, 2016; 2(3):154-163. Doi: 10.1200/jgo.2015.001974
- 73. Chen, S., & Wu, T. (2017). Breast cancer screening practices and related health beliefs among Taiwanese nurses. Asia-Pacific Journal of Oncology Nursing, 4(2), 104. Doi: 10.4103/2347-5625.204495

- 74. Cheung, P. (2018). Recent advances in breast cancer treatment. Hong Kong Medical Journal, 6-8. Doi: 10.12809/hkmj175077)
- 75. Cohen, M., & Azaiza, F. (2008). Developing and testing an instrument for identifying culture-specific barriers to breast cancer screening in Israeli Arab women. Acta oncologica (Stockholm, Sweden), 47(8), 1570–1577. https://doi.org/10.1080/02841860802078069
- 76. Collins, J., Blake, J., & Crosignani, P. (2005). Breast cancer risk with postmenopausal hormonal treatment. Human Reproduction Update, 11(6), 545-560. Doi: 10.1093/humupd/dmi028
- 77. Costantino, C., Alba, D., Cimino, L., Conforto, A., & Mazzucco, W. (2020). The Role of Vaccination and Screening in Limiting the Worldwide Disease Burden of Preventable Female Cancers: A Review. Women, 1(1), 16-28. Doi: 10.3390/women1010002
- 78. Crawford, J., Frisina, A., Hack, T., & Parascandalo, F. (2015). A Peer Health Educator Program for Breast Cancer Screening Promotion: Arabic, Chinese, South Asian, and Vietnamese Immigrant Women's Perspectives. Nursing research and practice, 2015, 947245. https://doi.org/10.1155/2015/947245
- 79. Creighton, C. (2012). The molecular profile of luminal B breast cancer. Biologics: Targets and Therapy, 289. doi: 10.2147/btt.s29923
- 80. Dagne, A., Ayele, A., & Assefa, E. (2019). Assessment of breast self-examination practice and associated factors among female workers in Debre Tabor Town public health facilities, North West Ethiopia, 2018: Cross-sectional study. PLOS ONE, 14(8), e0221356. Doi: 10.1371/journal.pone.0221356
- 81. Dahabreh, I., Wieland, L., Adam, G., Halladay, C., Lau, J., & Trikalinos, T. (2014). Core Needle and Open Surgical Biopsy for Diagnosis of Breast Lesions: Agency For Healthcare Research And Quality, 139, 1- 248. Doi: https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK246878/pdf/Bookshelf_NBK246878
- 82. Das, S., Sahoo, S., & Moharana, S. (2019). Barriers and facilitators of breast self-examination among rural women of procreative age. Kontakt, 21(1), 39-43. Doi: 10.32725/kont.2019.002)
- 83. De Silva, S., Tennekoon, K. H., & Karunanayake, E. H. (2019). Overview of the genetic basis toward early detection of breast cancer. Breast cancer (Dove Medical Press), 11, 71–80. https://doi.org/10.2147/BCTT.S185870
- 84. Demir Yildirim, A., & Ozaydin, A. (2014). Sources of Breast Cancer Knowledge of Women Living in Moda / İstanbul and Their Attendance to Breast Cancer Screening. The Journal of Breast Health, 10(1), 47-56. Doi: 10.5152/tjbh.2014.1762

- 85. Dewi, T., Massar, K., Ruiter, R., & Leonardi, T. (2019). Determinants of breast self-examination practice among women in Surabaya, Indonesia: an application of the health belief model. BMC Public Health, 19(1). Doi: 10.1186/s12889-019-7951-2
- 86. Dine, J., Gordon, R., Shames, Y., Kasler, M. K., & Barton-Burke, M. (2017). Immune Checkpoint Inhibitors: An Innovation in Immunotherapy for the Treatment and Management of Patients with Cancer. Asia-Pacific journal of oncology nursing, 4(2), 127–135. https://doi.org/10.4103/apjon.apjon_4_17.
- 87. Dinegde, N. G., Demie, T. G., & Diriba, A. B. (2020). Knowledge and Practice of Breast Self-Examination among Young Women in Tertiary Education in Addis Ababa, Ethiopia. Breast cancer (Dove Medical Press), 12, 201–210. https://doi.org/10.2147/BCTT.S279557
- 88. Doshi, D., Kulkarni, S., Reddy, B., & Karunakar, P. (2012). Breast self-examination: Knowledge, attitude, and practice among female dental students in Hyderabad city, India. Indian Journal of Palliative Care, 18(1), 68. Doi: 10.4103/0973-1075.97476
- 89. Drukteinis, J., Mooney, B., Flowers, C., & Gatenby, R. (2013). Beyond Mammography: New Frontiers in Breast Cancer Screening. The American Journal of Medicine, 126(6), 472-479. Doi: 10.1016/j.amjmed.2012.11.025
- 90. Dündar, P., Özmen, D., Öztürk, B., Haspolat, G., Akyıldız, F., Çoban, S., & Çakıroğlu, G. (2006). The knowledge and attitudes of breast self-examination and mammography in a group of women in a rural area in western Turkey. BMC Cancer, 6(1). Doi: 10.1186/1471-2407-6-43
- 91. Eaton, L. (2002). Early periods and late childbearing increase risk of breast cancer, study confirms. BMJ, 324(7334), 386b-386. Doi: 10.1136/bmj.324.7334.386/b
- 92. Elands, R., Offermans, N., Simons, C., Schouten, L., Verhage, B., Brandt, P., & Weijenberg, M. (2018). Associations of adult-attained height and early life energy restriction with postmenopausal breast cancer risk according to estrogen and progesterone receptor status. International Journal of Cancer, 144(8), 1844-1857. Doi: 10.1002/ijc.31890
- 93. Eliassen, A., Hankinson, S., Rosner, B., Holmes, M., & Willett, W. (2010). Physical Activity and Risk of Breast Cancer among Postmenopausal Women. Archives of Internal Medicine, 170(19). Doi: 10.1001/archinternmed.2010.363
- 94. Elidrissi Errahhali, M., Elidrissi Errahhali, M., Ouarzane, M., El Harroudi, T., Afqir, S., & Bellaoui, M. (2017). First report on molecular breast cancer subtypes and their clinico-pathological characteristics in Eastern Morocco: series of 2260 cases. BMC Women's Health, 17(1). Doi: 10.1186/s12905-016-0361-z

- 95. Elobaid, Y., Aw, T., Grivna, M., & Nagelkerke, N. (2014). Breast Cancer Screening Awareness, Knowledge, and Practice among Arab Women in the United Arab Emirates: A Cross-Sectional Survey. Plos ONE, 9(9), e105783. Doi: 10.1371/journal.pone.0105783
- 96. ElSharkawy, A. (2014). Breast Cancer. OMICS Group Ebooks, 1-38. Doi: researchgate.net/publication/321477037_Breast_Cancer/link/5a22f0670f7e9b7 1dd052d9c/download
- 97. Elsie, K., Gonzaga, M., Francis, B., Michael, K., Rebecca, N., Rosemary, B., & Zeridah, M. (2010). Current knowledge, attitudes and practices of women on breast cancer and mammography at Mulago Hospital. Pan African Medical Journal, 5(1). Doi: 10.4314/pamj.v5i1.56186
- 98. Ersin, F., & Polat, P. (2016). Examination of factors affecting women's barrier perception to participate in breast cancer screenings in a region affiliated with a family health center in Turkey. Turkish Journal of Medical Sciences, 46, 1393-1400. Doi: 10.3906/sag-1502-89
- Escala-Garcia, M., Morra, A., Canisius, S., Chang-Claude, J., Kar, S., & Zheng, W. et al. (2020). Breast cancer risk factors and their effects on survival: a Mendelian randomisation study. BMC Medicine, 18(1). Doi: 10.1186/s12916-020-01797-2
- 100. Evans, A., Trimboli, R., Athanasiou, A., Balleyguier, C., Baltzer, P., & Bick, U. et al. (2018). Breast ultrasound: recommendations for information to women and referring physicians by the European Society of Breast Imaging. Insights into Imaging, 9(4), 449-461. Doi: 10.1007/s13244-018-0636-z
- 101. Ewaid, S., Shanjar, A., & Mahdi, R. (2018). Knowledge and practice of breast self-examination among a sample of women in Shatra/Dhi-Qar/Iraq. Alexandria Journal of Medicine, 54(4), 315-317. DOI: 10.1016/j.ajme.2017.12.002
- 102. Fan, W., Chang, J., & Fu, P. (2015). Endocrine therapy resistance in breast cancer: current status, possible mechanisms and overcoming strategies. Future medicinal chemistry, 7(12), 1511–1519. https://doi.org/10.4155/fmc.15.93
- 103. Farhadihosseinabadi, B., Hossein, F., Larki, P., Bagheri, N., Abbaszadeh-Goudarzi, K., Sinehsepehr, K., & Abdollahpour-Alitappeh, M. (2018). Breast Cancer: Risk Factors, Diagnosis and Management. Medical Laboratory Journal, 12(5), 1-9.
- 104. Feng, Y., Spezia, M., Huang, S., Yuan, C., Zeng, Z., Zhang, L., Ji, X., Liu, W., Huang, B., Luo, W., Liu, B., Lei, Y., Du, S., Vuppalapati, A., Luu, H. H., Haydon, R. C., He, T. C., & Ren, G. (2018). Breast cancer development and progression: Risk factors, cancer stem cells, signaling pathways, genomics, and molecular pathogenesis. Genes & diseases, 5(2), 77–106. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.gendis.2018.05.001.

- 105. Franceschini, G., Di Leone, A., Terribile, D., Sanchez, M. A., & Masetti, R. (2019). Bilateral prophylactic mastectomy in BRCA mutation carriers: what surgeons need to know? Annali italiani di chirurgia, 90, 1–2.
- 106. Francies, F., Hull,, R., Khanyile,, R., & Dlamini, Z. (2020). Breast cancer in low-middle income countries: abnormality in splicing and lack of targeted treatment options. American Journal of Cancer Research, 10(5), 1568-1591. Doi: http://www.ajcr.us/
- 107. Gangane, N., Ng, N., & Sebastian, M. S. (2015). Women's Knowledge, Attitudes, and Practices about Breast Cancer in a Rural District of Central India. Asian Pacific journal of cancer prevention: APJCP, 16(16), 6863–6870. https://doi.org/10.7314/apjcp.2015.16.16.6863
- 108. Ganz, P., Yip, C., Gralow, J., Distelhorst, S., Albain, K., & Andersen, B. et al. (2013). Supportive care after curative treatment for breast cancer (survivorship care): Resource allocations in low- and middle-income countries. A Breast Health Global Initiative 2013 consensus statement. The Breast, 22(5), 606-615. Doi: 10.1016/j.breast.2013.07.049
- 109. Gershuni, V., Ahima, R., & Tchou, J. (2016). Obesity and Breast Cancer: A Complex Relationship. Current Surgery Reports, 4(4). Doi: 10.1007/s40137-016-0134-5
- 110. Getu, M., Wudu Kassaw, M., Tlaye, K., & Gebrekiristos, A. (2018). Assessment of breast self-examination practice and its associated factors among female undergraduate students in Addis Ababa University, Addis Ababa, Ethiopia, 2016. Breast Cancer: Targets and Therapy, Volume 11, 21-28. Doi: 10.2147/bctt.s189023
- 111. Gemici, A., Tokgöz Özal, S., Şen, E., Hocaoğlu, E., & Inci, E. (2020). Evaluation of Information and Practices about Breast Cancer Screening Performed in Women Presented to a University Hospital in Istanbul. Medical Journal of Bakırkoy. Doi: 10.5222/bmj.2020.57441.
- 112. Gilani, S., Khurram, M., Mazhar, T., r Mir, S., Ali, S., Tariq, S., & Malik, A. (2010). Knowledge, attitude and practice of a Pakistani female cohort towards breast cancer. Journal of the Pakistan Medical Association ·, 60(3), 205-208. Retrieved from https://www.researchgate.net/publication/41941300
- 113. Galary, K., Abdullah, R., & Majid, R. (2020). Practicing Breast Self-Examination Related Knowledge among Women at General Hospitals in Duhok City. Mosul Journal of Nursing, 8(1), 89-97.
- 114. Gilbert, F., Tucker, L., & Young, K. (2016). Digital breast tomosynthesis (DBT): a review of the evidence for use as a screening tool. Clinical Radiology, 71(2), 141-150. Doi: 10.1016/j.crad.2015.11.008

- 115. Ginsburg, O., Yip, C., Brooks, A., Cabanes, A., Caleffi, M., & Dunstan Yataco, J. et al. (2020). Breast cancer early detection: A phased approach to implementation. Cancer, 126(S10), 2379-2393. Doi: 10.1002/cncr.32887
- 116. GLOBOCAN 2020: New Global Cancer Data | UICC. (2021). Retrieved 14 March 2021, from https://www.uicc.org/news/globocan-2020-new-global-cancer-data.
- 117. Gyedu, A., Gaskill, C. E., Boakye, G., Abdulai, A. R., Anderson, B. O., & Stewart, B. (2018). Differences in Perception of Breast Cancer among Muslim and Christian Women in Ghana. Journal of global oncology, 4, 1–9. https://doi.org/10.1200/JGO.2017.009910
- 118. Hartmann, L., Sellers, T., Frost, M., Lingle, W., Degnim, A., & Ghosh, K. et al. (2005). Benign Breast Disease and the Risk of Breast Cancer. The New England Journal of Medicine, 353(3), 229-237. Doi: researchgate.net/publication/7711284_Benign_Breast_Disease_and_the_Risk_of_Breast_Cancer/link/09e41508ff56586cbc000000/download
- 119. Harbeck, N., Penault-Llorca, F., Cortes, J., Gnant, M., Houssami, N., & Poortmans, P. et al. (2019). Breast cancer. Nature Reviews Disease Primers, 5(1). Doi: 10.1038/s41572-019-0111-2)
- 120. Hasan, T., Shah, S., Hassan, M., Safian, N., Azhar, Z., Syed Abdul Rahim, S., & Ghazi, H. (2015). Poor Knowledge and Practice towards Breast Cancer among Women in Baghdad City, Iraq. Asian Pacific Journal of Cancer Prevention, 16(15), 6669-6672. Doi: 10.7314/apjcp.2015.16.15.6669
- 121. Hasnain, M., Menon, U., Ferrans, C., & Szalacha, L. (2014). Breast Cancer Screening Practices Among First-Generation Immigrant Muslim Women. Journal of Women's Health, 23(7), 602-612. Doi: 10.1089/jwh.2013.4569
- 122. Hatefnia, E., Niknami, S., Bazargan, M., Mahmoodi, M., Lamyianm, M., & Alavi, N. (2010). Correlates of mammography utilization among working Muslim Iranian women. Health Care Women International, 31(6), 499-514. https://doi.org/10.1080/07399331003725507.
- 123. Heena, H., Durrani, S., Riaz, M., AlFayyad, I., Tabasim, R., Parvez, G., & Abu-Shaheen, A. (2019). Knowledge, attitudes, and practices related to breast cancer screening among female health care professionals: a cross sectional study. BMC Women's Health, 19(1). Doi: 10.1186/s12905-019-0819-x
- 124. Heidari, Z., Mahmoudzadeh-Sagheb, H., & Sakhavar, N. (2007). Breast Cancer Screening Knowledge and Practice among Women in Southeast of Iran. Acta Medica Iranica, 46(4), 322-328.

- 125. Hill, D. (2005). Breast cancer risk following radiotherapy for Hodgkin lymphoma: modification by other risk factors. Blood, 106(10), 3358-3365. Doi: 10.1182/blood-2005-04-1535
- 126. Himes, D., Root, A., Gammon, A., & Luthy, K. (2016). Breast Cancer Risk Assessment: Calculating Lifetime Risk Using the Tyrer-Cuzick Model. The Journal for Nurse Practitioners, 12(9), 581-592. Doi: 10.1016/j.nurpra.2016.07.027
- 127. https://www.who.int/cancer/PRGlobocanFinal.pdf?ua=1
- 128. Hunter, C. M., & Figueiro, M. G. (2017). Measuring Light at Night and Melatonin Levels in Shift Workers: A Review of the Literature. Biological research for nursing, 19(4), 365–374. https://doi.org/10.1177/1099800417714069
- 129. Hussain, A. M., & Lafta, R. K. (2021). Cancer Trends in Iraq 2000-2016. Oman medical journal, 36(1), e219. https://doi.org/10.5001/omj.2021.18
- 130. Hwang, J., Donnelly, T., Ewashen, C., McKiel, E., Raffin, S., & Kinch, J. (2016). Sociocultural Influences on Arab Women's Participation in Breast Cancer Screening in Qatar. Qualitative Health Research, 27(5), 714-726. Doi: 10.1177/1049732315619373
- 131. Ikhuoria, E., & Bach, C. (2018). Introduction to Breast Carcinogenesis Symptoms, Risks factors, Treatment and Management. European Journal of Engineering Research and Science, 3(7), 58. Doi: 10.24018/ejers.2018.3.7.745)
- 132. Inskip, P., Robison, L., Stovall, M., Smith, S., Hammond, S., & Mertens, A. et al. (2009). Radiation Dose and Breast Cancer Risk in the Childhood Cancer Survivor Study. Journal of Clinical Oncology, 27(24), 3901-3907. Doi: 10.1200/jco.2008.20.7738
- 133. Isikhuemen, M., Eliboh, M., Eni, E., Ekwedigwe, K., & Sunday-Adeoye, I. (2018). Outcome of open excisional breast biopsies in Abakaliki, South-East Nigeria. Pan African Medical Journal, 31. Doi: 10.11604/pamj.2018.31.185.15216.
- 134. Islam, N., Patel, S., Brooks-Griffin, Q., Kemp, P., Raveis, V., Riley, L., Gummi, S., Queano Nur, P., Ravenell, J., Cole, H., & Kwon, S. (2017). Understanding barriers and facilitators to breast and cervical cancer screening among Muslim women in New York City: Perspectives from key informants. S.M. Journal of Community Medicine, 3(1), 1-11. https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/29629435/
- 135. Islam, R., Bell, R., Billah, B., Hossain, M., & Davis, S. (2016). Awareness of breast cancer and barriers to breast screening uptake in Bangladesh: A population based survey. Maturitas, 84, 68-74. doi: 10.1016/j.maturitas.2015.11.002

- 136. Islam, R., Billah, B., Hossain, M., & Oldroyd, J. (2017). Barriers to Cervical Cancer and Breast Cancer Screening Uptake in Low-Income and Middle-Income Countries: A Systematic Review. Asian Pacific Journal of Cancer Prevention, 18(7), 1751-1763.
- 137. Iraq Population (2021) Worldometer. (2021). Retrieved 15 March 2021, from https://www.worldometers.info/world-population/iraq-population/.
- 138. Iraq population (2021) live Countrymeters. (2021). Retrieved 15 March 2021, from https://countrymeters.info/en/Iraq
- 139. Izanloo, A., Ghaffarzadehgan, K., Khoshroo, F., Erfani Haghiri, M., Izanloo, S., & Samiee, M. et al. (2018). Knowledge and attitude of women regarding breast cancer screening tests in Eastern Iran. Ecancermedicalscience, 12. Doi: 10.3332/ecancer.2018.806
- 140. Jafari-Mianaei, S., Alimohammadi, N., Banki-Poorfard, A.H., & Hasanpour, M. (2017). An inquiry into the concept of infancy care based on the perspective of Islam. NursingInquiry, 4(4). https://doi.org/10.1111/nin.12198
- 141. Jin, J. (2014). Breast Cancer Screening: Benefits and Harms. JAMA, 312(23), 2585. Doi: 10.1001/jama.2014.13195).
- 142. Jones, M., Schoemaker, M., McFadden, E., Wright, L., Johns, L., & Swerdlow, A. (2019). Reply to Comment on: "Night shift work and risk of breast cancer in women: the Generations Study cohort". British Journal of Cancer, 121(8), 723-724. Doi: 10.1038/s41416-019-0568-5
- 143. Jones, M., Schoemaker, M., Wright, L., Ashworth, A., & Swerdlow, A. (2017). Smoking and risk of breast cancer in the Generations Study cohort. Breast Cancer Research, 19(1). Doi: 10.1186/s13058-017-0908-4
- 144. Kamińska, M., Ciszewski, T., Łopacka-Szatan, K., Miotła, P., & Starosławska, E. (2015). Breast cancer risk factors. Menopausal Review, 3, 196-202. Doi: 10.5114/pm.2015.54346
- 145. Abedalrahman, S., Abid Issa Al-Khalidy, N., & K. Al-Diwan, J. (2019). Advanced Stage at Diagnosis Among Iraqi Breast Cancer Women. Sudan Journal of Medical Sciences. Doi: 10.18502/sjms.v14i2.4690.
- 146. Karale, P., Karale, M., & Utikar, M. (2018). Advanced Molecular Targeted Therapy in Breast Cancer. Research Journal of Pharmacology and Pharmacodynamics, 10(1), 29. Doi: 10.5958/2321-5836.2018.00006.x
- 147. Karbani, G., Lim, J. N., Hewison, J., Atkin, K., Horgan, K., Lansdown, M., & Chu, C. E. (2011). Culture, attitude and knowledge about breast cancer and preventive measures: a qualitative study of South Asian breast cancer patients in the UK. Asian Pacific journal of cancer prevention: APJCP, 12(6), 1619–1626.

- 148. Karim, S., Ghalib, H., Mohammed, S., & Fattah, F. (2015). The incidence, age at diagnosis of breast cancer in the Iraqi Kurdish population and comparison to some other countries of Middle-East and West. International Journal of Surgery, 13, 71-75. DOI: 10.1016/j.ijsu.2014.11.029.
- 149. Kawar L. N. (2013). Barriers to breast cancer screening participation among Jordanian and Palestinian American women. European journal of oncology nursing: the official journal of European Oncology Nursing Society, 17(1), 88–94. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ejon.2012.02.004.
- 150. Khaliq, W., & Visvanathan, K. (2012). Breast Cancer Chemoprevention: Current Approachesand Future Directions. Current Obstetrics and Gynecology Reports, 1(1), 33-41. Doi: 10.1007/s13669-011-0005-0
- 151. Khalis, M., Charbotel, B., Chajès, V., Rinaldi, S., Moskal, A., & Biessy, C. et al. (2018). Menstrual and reproductive factors and risk of breast cancer: A case-control study in the Fez region, Morocco. PLOS ONE, 13(1), e0191333. Doi: 10.1371/journal.pone.0191333
- 152. Khan, Y., & Sajjad, H. (2020). Anatomy, Thorax, Mammary Gland. Https://Www.Statpearls.Com/, 1-16.
- 153. Khoshnaw, N., Mohammed, H. A., & Abdullah, D. A. (2016). Patterns of Cancer in north of Iraq Results of Eight Years Cancer Registration in Sulaymaniyah Province-North of Iraq. Asian Pacific journal of cancer prevention: APJCP, 16(18), 8525–8531. https://doi.org/10.7314/apjcp.2015.16.18.8525.
- 154. Kifle, M., Kidane, E., Gebregzabher, N., Teweldeberhan, A., Sielu, F., & Kidane, K. et al. (2016). Knowledge and Practice of Breast Self Examination among Female College Students in Eritrea. American Journal of Health Research, 4(4), 104. Doi: 10.11648/j.ajhr.20160404.16
- 155. Kim, J., Oh, K., Li, C., Min, H., Chang, E., & Song, R. (2011). Breast Cancer Screening Practice and Health-Promoting Behavior among Chinese Women. Asian Nursing Research, 5(3), 157-163. Doi: 10.1016/j.anr.2011.09.005
- 156. Kwok, C., & Fong, D. (2014). Breast Cancer Screening Practices among Hong Kong Chinese Women. Cancer Nursing, 37(1), 59-65. Doi: 10.1097/ncc.0b013e31827f0a9d
- 157. Kwok, C., Endrawes, G., & Lee, C.F. (2016). Cultural beliefs and attitudes about breast cancer and screening practices among Arabic women in Australia, Cancer Nursing, 36(5), 367-374. https://doi.org/10.1097/ncc.0000000000000325.
- 158. Litton, J., Burstein, H., & Turner, N. (2019). Molecular Testing in Breast Cancer. American Society of Clinical Oncology Educational Book, (39), e1-e7. Doi: 10.1200/edbk_237715.

- 159. Liu, L., Wang, Y., Wang, F., Yu, L., Xiang, Y., & Zhou, F. et al. (2018). Factors associated with insufficient awareness of breast cancer among women in Northern and Eastern China: a case—control study. BMJ Open, 8(2), e018523. Doi: 10.1136/bmjopen-2017-018523
- 160. Louro, J., Román, M., Posso, M., Vidal, C., Prieto, M., & Saladié, F. et al. (2020). Differences in breast cancer risk after a benign breast disease according to the screening type. European Journal of Cancer, 138, S11. Doi: 10.1016/s0959-8049(20)30552-9
- 161. Majid, R., Hassan, H., Muhealdeen, D., Mohammed, H., & Hughson, M. (2017). Breast cancer in Iraq is associated with a unimodally distributed predominance of luminal type B over luminal type a surrogates from young to old age. BMC Women's Health, 17(1). DOI: 10.1186/s12905-017-0376-0.
- 162. Majid, R., Mohammed, H., Saeed, H., Safar, B., Rashid, R., & Hughson, M. (2009). Breast cancer in Kurdish women of northern Iraq: incidence, clinical stage, and case-control analysis of parity and family risk. BMC Women's Health, 9(1), 1-6. DOI: 10.1186/1472-6874-9-33.
- 163. Mamdouh, H. M., El-Mansy, H., Kharboush, I. F., Ismail, H. M., Tawfik, M. M., El-Baky, M. A., & El Sharkawy, O. G. (2014). Barriers to breast cancer screening among a sample of Egyptian females. Journal of family & community medicine, 21(2), 119–124. https://doi.org/10.4103/2230-8229.134771
- 164. Mango, V., Bryce, Y., Morris, E., Gianotti, E., & Pinker, K. (2018). Commentary ACOG Practice Bulletin July 2017: Breast Cancer Risk Assessment and Screening in Average-Risk Women. The British Journal of Radiology, 91(1090), 20170907. Doi: 10.1259/bjr.20170907
- 165. Manzour, A., & Gamal Eldin, D. (2019). Awareness about breast cancer and mammogram among women attending outpatient clinics, Ain Shams University Hospitals, Egypt. Journal of the Egyptian Public Health Association, 94(1). Doi: 10.1186/s42506-019-0026-5
- 166. Marchbanks, P., McDonald, J., Wilson, H., Folger, S., Mandel, M., & Daling, J. et al. (2002). Oral Contraceptives and the Risk of Breast Cancer. Obstetrical & Gynecological Survey, 57(11), 752-753. Doi: 10.1097/00006254-200211000-00020
- 167. Marinho, L., CecattiI, J., OsisII, M., & Gurgel, M. (2008). Knowledge, attitude and practice of mammography among women users of public health services. Rev Saúde Pública, 42(2), 200-207. Retrieved from https://www.scielo.br/pdf/rsp/v42n2/6470.pdf
- 168. Mikulandra, M., BoŽina, I., & BeketiĆ-OreŠkoviĆ, L. (2016). Radiation Therapy for Breast Cancer. Lib Oncol, 44(2-3), 21-30.

- 169. Mohammed, S. (2018). Assessment of Knowledge, Attitude and Breast Self-Examination Practice among Female Students in Sulaimani Polytechnic University. Journal of Applied Research, 49-55. Doi: 10.24017/science.2018.2.8
- 170. Momenimovahed, Z., & Salehiniya, H. (2019). Epidemiological characteristics of and risk factors for breast cancer in the world. (Dove Med Press), 11, 151–164. Doi: https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6462164/
- 171. Momenimovahed, Z., Tiznobaik, A., Taheri, S., Hassanipour, S., & Salehiniya, H. (2020). A review of barriers and facilitators to mammography in Asian women. Ecancermedicalscience, 14. Doi: 10.3332/ecancer.2020.1146
- 172. Montazeri, A., Vahdaninia, M., Harirchi, I., Harirchi, A., Sajadian, A., & Khaleghi, F. et al. (2008). Breast cancer in Iran: need for greater women awareness of warning signs and effective screening methods. Asia Pacific Family Medicine, 7(1), 6. Doi: 10.1186/1447-056x-7-6
- 173. Moran, O., Eisen, A., Demsky, R., Blackmore, K., Knight, J., & Panchal, S. et al. (2019). Predictors of mammographic density among women with a strong family history of breast cancer. BMC Cancer, 19(1). Doi: 10.1186/s12885-019-5855-2
- 174. Morse, E., Maegga, B., Joseph, G., & Miesfeldt, S. (2014). Breast Cancer Knowledge, Beliefs, and Screening Practices among Women Seeking Care at District Hospitals in Dar es Salaam, Tanzania. Breast Cancer: Basic and Clinical Research, 8, BCBCR.S13745. Doi: 10.4137/bcbcr.s13745
- 175. Mutar, M. T., Goyani, M. S., Had, A. M., & Mahmood, A. S. (2019). Pattern of Presentation of Patients with Breast Cancer in Iraq in 2018: A Cross-Sectional Study. Journal of global oncology, 5, 1–6. https://doi.org/10.1200/JGO.19.00041
- 176. M Deshpande, T., Pandey, A., & Shyama, S. (2017). Review: Breast cancer and etiology. Trends in Medicine, 17(1). Doi: 10.15761/tim.1000110)
- 177. Nazzal, Z., Sholi, H., Sholi, S., Sholi, M., & Lahaseh, R. (2016). Mammography Screening Uptake among Female Health Care Workers in Primary Health Care Centers in Palestine Motivators and Barriers. Asian Pacific Journal of Cancer Prevention, 17(5), 2549-2554. Doi: 10.1016/s0140-6736(18)30417-3
- 178. Nazário, A., Facina, G., & Filassi, J. (2015). Breast cancer: news in diagnosis and treatment. Revista Da Associação Médica Brasileira, 61(6), 543-552. Doi: 10.1590/1806-9282.61.06.543).
- 179. Nde, F., Assob, J., Kwenti, T., Njunda, A., & Tainenbe, T. (2015). Knowledge, attitude and practice of breast self-examination among female undergraduate students in the University of Buea. BMC Research Notes, 8(1). Doi: 10.1186/s13104-015-1004-4

- 180. Obajimi, M. O., Ajayi, I. O., Oluwasola, A. O., Adedokun, B. O., Adeniji-Sofoluwe, A. T., Mosuro, O. A., Akingbola, T. S., Bassey, O. S., Umeh, E., Soyemi, T. O., Adegoke, F., Ogungbade, I., Ukaigwe, C., & Olopade, O. I. (2013). Level of awareness of mammography among women attending outpatient clinics in a teaching hospital in Ibadan, South-West Nigeria. BMC public health, 13, 40. https://doi.org/10.1186/1471-2458-13-40
- 181. O'Hara, J., McPhee, C., Dodson, S., Cooper, A., Wildey, C., & Hawkins, M. et al. (2018). Barriers to Breast Cancer Screening among Diverse Cultural Groups in Melbourne, Australia. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health, 15(8), 1677. Doi: 10.3390/ijerph15081677.
- 182. Oeffinger, K., Fontham, E., Etzioni, R., Herzig, A., Michaelson, J., & Shih, Y. et al. (2015). Breast Cancer Screening for Women at Average Risk. JAMA, 314(15), 1599. doi: 10.1001/jama.2015.12783
- 183. Olsson, H., & Olsson, M. (2020). The Menstrual Cycle and Risk of Breast Cancer: A Review. Frontiers in Oncology, 10. Doi: 10.3389/fonc.2020.00021
- 184. Oyama, T., Koibuchi, Y., & McKee, G. (2004). Core needle biopsy (CNB) as a diagnostic method for breast lesions: Comparison with fine needle aspiration cytology (FNA). Breast Cancer, 11(4), 339-342. Doi: 10.1007/bf02968040
- 185. Ozmen, T., Yuce, S., Guler, T., Ulun, C., Ozaydin, N., & Pruthi, S. et al. (2016). Barriers against Mammographic Screening in a Socioeconomically Underdeveloped Population: A Population-based, Cross-sectional Study. Journal of Breast Health, 12(2), 72-77. Doi: 10.5152/tjbh.2016.2879
- 186. Ozsoy, A., Barca, N., Dolek, B. A., Aktaş, H., Elverici, E., Araz, L., & Ozkaraoğlu, O. (2017). The Relationship between Breast Cancer and Risk Factors: A Single-Center Study. European journal of breast health, 13(3), 145–149. https://doi.org/10.5152/tjbh.2017.3180
- 187. Padela, A.I., Malik, S., Ally, S.A., Quinn, M., Hall, S., & Peek, M. (2018). Reducing Muslim mammography disparities: Outcomes from a religiously tailored mosque based intervention. Health Education & Behavior, 45(6), 1025 1035. https://doi.org/10.1177%2F1090198118769371
- 188. Parsa, P., Kandiah, M., Abdul Rahman, H., & Zulkefli, N. M. (2006). Barriers for breast cancer screening among Asian women: a mini literature review. Asian Pacific journal of cancer prevention: APJCP, 7(4), 509–514.
- 189. Petro-Nustus, W., Norton, M.E., Vilhauer, R.P., & Connelly, A.D. (2012). Health beliefs associated with breast cancer screening among Arab women in the Northeastern United States. International Journal of Health Promotion and Education, 50(6), 273–277. http://dx.doi.org.cyber.usask.ca/10.1080/14635240.2012.723374

- 190. Pruthi, S., Heisey, R., & Bevers, T. (2015). Chemoprevention for Breast Cancer. Annals of Surgical Oncology, 22(10), 3230-3235. Doi: 10.1245/s10434-015-4715-9
- 191. Radhakrishna, S., Agarwal, S., Parikh, P. M., Kaur, K., Panwar, S., Sharma, S., Dey, A., Saxena, K. K., Chandra, M., & Sud, S. (2018). Role of magnetic resonance imaging in breast cancer management. South Asian journal of cancer, 7(2), 69–71. https://doi.org/10.4103/sajc.sajc_104_18
- 192. Rakha, E., Reis-Filho, J., & Ellis, I. (2008). Basal-Like Breast Cancer: A Critical Review. Journal of Clinical Oncology, 26(15), 2568-2581. Doi: 10.1200/jco.2007.13.1748
- 193. RamBihariLal Shrivastava, S., Saurabh Shrivastava, P., & Ramasamy, J. (2013). Self Breast Examination: A Tool for Early Diagnosis of Breast Cancer. American Journal of Public Health Research, 1(6), 135-139. Doi: 10.12691/ajphr-1-6-2
- 194. Rapelyea, J., & Marks, C. (2018). Breast Ultrasound Past, Present, and Future, 22-48.
- 195. Riis M. (2020). Modern surgical treatment of breast cancer. Annals of medicine and surgery (2012), 56, 95–107. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.amsu.2020.06.016
- 196. Rivera-Franco, M., & Leon-Rodriguez, E. (2018). Delays in Breast Cancer Detection and Treatment in Developing Countries. Breast Cancer: Basic and Clinical Research, 12, 117822341775267. Doi: 10.1177/1178223417752677.
- 197. Russo, G., Tomao, F., Spinelli, G., Prete1, 2, A., Stati, V., & Panici, P. et al. (2014). Fertility drugs and breast cancer risk. N European Journal of Gynaecological Oncology ·, 2562(33), 1-7. Doi: researchgate.net/publication/264119166_Fertility_drugs_and_breast_cancer_risk
- 198. S., V., Kollipaka, R., & R, R. (2015). The knowledge and attitude of breast self examination and mammography among rural women. International Journal of Reproduction, Contraception, Obstetrics and Gynecology, 1511-1516. Doi: 10.18203/2320-1770.ijrcog20150738
- 199. Saadi, A., Bond, B., & Percac-Lima, S. (2012). Perspectives on Preventive Health Care and Barriers to Breast Cancer Screening Among Iraqi Women Refugees. Journal of Immigrant and Minority Health, 14(4), 633-639. DOI: 10.1007/s10903-011-9520-3.
- 200. Safarpour, M., Tiyuri, A., & Mohamadzade, M. (2018). Knowledge, Attitudes and Practice of Women towards Breast Cancer and Its Screening: Babol City, Iran 2017. Iranian Journal of Health Sciences. Doi: 10.18502/jhs.v6i4.199

- 201. Salman, A., & Abass, B. (2015). Breast Cancer: Knowledge, Attitudes and Practices of Female Secondary Schoolteachers and Students in Samarra City. Iraqi Journal of Cancer and Medical Genetics, 8(1), 52-59. Retrieved from https://www.iasj.net/iasj/download/0b8e1056794704f4.
- 202. Salman, K.F. (2012). Health beliefs and practices related to cancer screening among Arab Muslim women in an urban community. Health Care for Women International, 33(1), 45–74. https://doi.org/10.1080/07399332.2011.610536.
- 203. Salvatorelli, L., Puzzo, L., Vecchio, G., Caltabiano, R., Virzì, V., & Magro, G. (2020). Ductal Carcinoma in Situ of the Breast: An Update with Emphasis on Radiological and Morphological Features as Predictive Prognostic Factors. Cancers, 12(3), 609. Doi: 10.3390/cancers12030609
- 204. Saslow, D., Hannan, J., Osuch, J., Alciati, M., Baines, C., & Barton, M. et al. (2004). Clinical Breast Examination: Practical Recommendations for Optimizing Performance and Reporting. CA: A Cancer Journal for Clinicians, 54(6), 327-344. Doi: 10.3322/canjclin.54.6.327.
- 205. Sauter, E. (2018). Breast Cancer Prevention: Current Approaches and Future Directions. European Journal of Breast Health. Doi: 10.5152/ejbh.2018.3978
- 206. Sideeq, K., Ayoub, T., & Sailm Khan, S. (2017). Breast self-examination: assessing its knowledge attitude and practice among ethnic Kashmiri females. International Journal of Community Medicine and Public Health, 4(9), 3288. Doi: 10.18203/2394-6040.ijcmph20173830
- 207. Schoub, P. (2018). Understanding indications and defining guidelines for breast magnetic resonance imaging. South African Journal of Radiology, 22(2). Doi: 10.4102/sajr.v22i2.1353
- 208. Shah, R., Rosso, K., & Nathanson, S. (2014). Pathogenesis, prevention, diagnosis and treatment of breast cancer. World Journal of Clinical Oncology, 5(3), 283. Doi: 10.5306/wjco.v5.i3.283
- 209. Shakor, J., & Mohammed, A. (2018). Assessment of breast cancer early detection program in Iraq-Sulaimania: Measuring the cancer detection rate. Indian Journal of Cancer, 55(1), 84. Doi: 10.4103/ijc.ijc_633_17
- 210. Shakor, J., & Mohammed, A. (2019). Women's delay in presenting breast cancer symptoms in north-Iraq. Journal of Cancer Research and Therapeutics, 0(0), 0. DOI: 10.4103/jcrt.jcrt_775_18
- 211. Shakor, J., Mohammed, A., & Karotia, D. (2019). Determinants of Breast Self-Examination Practice amongst Iraqi/Sulaimani Women using Champion Health Belief Model and Breast CAM. International Journal of Medical Research & Health Sciences, 8(9), 51-59.

- 212. Sheikh Alaudeen, S., & Ganesan, K. (2019). Knowledge, attitude, and practice of Malaysian medical students towards breast cancer: A cross-sectional study. Internal Medicine and Care, 3(1). Doi: 10.15761/imc.1000125
- 213. Shen, Y., Winget, M., & Yuan, Y. (2017). The impact of false positive breast cancer screening mammograms on screening retention: A retrospective population cohort study in Alberta, Canada. Canadian Journal of Public Health, 108(5-6), e539-e545. Doi: 10.17269/cjph.108.6154
- 214. Shiyanbola, O., Arao, R., Miglioretti, D., Sprague, B., Hamption, J., & Stout, N. et al. (2017). Emerging Trends in Family History of Breast Cancer and Associated Risk. Cancer Epidemiology Biomarkers & Prevention, 26(3), 438.2-438. Doi: 10.1158/1055-9965.epi-17-0029
- 215. Shrestha, K. (2012). Breast Cancer Knowledge and Screening Practice among Women Visited to KIST Medical College. Epal Med Coll J, 14(4), 308-311. Retrieved from https://www.nmcth.edu/images/gallery/Original%20Articles/42bYvK%20Shrestha.pdf
- Shulman, L. N., Willett, W., Sievers, A., & Knaul, F. M. (2010). Breast cancer in developing countries: opportunities for improved survival. Journal of oncology, 2010, 595167. https://doi.org/10.1155/2010/595167.
- 217. Smoot, B., Wampler, M., & Topp, K. (2009). Breast Cancer Treatments and Complications: Implications for Rehabilitation. Rehabilitation Oncology, 27(3), 16-26. Doi: 10.1097/01893697-200927030-00004.
- 218. Soskolne, V., Saed, M., & Manor, O. (2007). Beliefs, recommendations and intentions are important explanatory factors of mammography screening behavior among Muslim Arab women in Israel. Health Education Research, 22(5), 665-676. https://doi.org/10.1093/her/cyl132.
- 219. Subramanian, P., Oranye, N., Masri, A., Taib, N., & Ahmad, N. (2013). Breast Cancer Knowledge and Screening Behaviour among Women with a Positive Family History: A Cross Sectional Study. Asian Pacific Journal of Cancer Prevention, 14(11), 6783-6790. Doi: 10.7314/apjcp.2013.14.11.6783
- 220. Surakasula, A., Nagarjunapu, G., & Raghavaiah, K. (2014). A comparative study of pre- and post-menopausal breast cancer: Risk factors, presentation, characteristics and management. Journal of Research in Pharmacy Practice, 3(1), 12. Doi: 10.4103/2279-042x.132704
- 221. Suwankhong, D., & Liamputtong, P. (2018). Early Detection of Breast Cancer and Barrier to Screening Programmes amongst Thai Migrant Women in Australia: A Qualitative Study. Asian Pac J Cancer Prev, 19(4), 1089-1097.
- 222. Teixeira, M., Goldman, R., Gonçalves, V., Gutiérrez, M., & Figueiredo, E. (2017). Primary care nurses' role in the control of breast cancer. Acta Paulista De Enfermagem, 30(1), 1-7. Doi: 10.1590/1982-0194201700002

- 223. The Endogenous Hormones and Breast Cancer Collaborative Group. (2002). Endogenous Sex Hormones and Breast Cancer in Postmenopausal Women: Reanalysis of Nine Prospective Studies. Cancerspectrum Knowledge Environment, 94(8), 606-616. Doi: 10.1093/jnci/94.8.606
- 224. Tuzcu, A., & Bahar, Z. (2015). Barriers and facilitators to breast cancer screening among migrant women within Turkey. Journal of transcultural nursing: official journal of the Transcultural Nursing Society, 26(1), 47–56. https://doi.org/10.1177/1043659614526245
- 225. Vahabi, M., Lofters, A., Kumar, M., & Glazier, R. H. (2015). Breast cancer screening disparities among urban immigrants: a population-based study in Ontario, Canada. BMC public health, 15, https://doi.org/10.1186/s12889-015-2050-5
- 226. Vega Bolívar, A. (2011). Diagnostic intervention in breast disease. Radiología (English Edition), 53(6), 531-543. Doi: 10.1016/j.rxeng.2011.06.001
- 227. Veitch, D., Goossens, R., Owen, H., Veitch, J., Molenbroek, J., & Bochner, M. (2019). Evaluation of conventional training in Clinical Breast Examination (CBE). Work, 62(4), 647-656. Doi: 10.3233/wor-192899
- 228. Vogel, W. (2003). The Advanced Practice Nursing Role in a High-Risk Breast Cancer Clinic. Oncology Nursing Forum, 30(1), 115-122. Doi: 10.1188/03.onf.115-122.
- 229. Waks, A., & Winer, E. (2019). Breast Cancer Treatment. JAMA, 321(3), 316. Doi: 10.1001/jama.2018.20751
- 230. Wang, A., Vachon, C., Brandt, K., & Ghosh, K. (2014). Breast Density and Breast Cancer Risk: A Practical Review. Mayo Clinic Proceedings, 89(4), 548-557. Doi: 10.1016/j.mayocp.2013.12.014
- 231. White, M., Kavanaugh-Lynch, M., Davis-Patterson, S., & Buermeyer, N. (2020). An Expanded Agenda for the Primary Prevention of Breast Cancer: Charting a Course for the Future. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health, 17(3), 714. Doi: 10.3390/ijerph17030714)
- 232. Wong, F., Tham, W., Nei, W., Lim, C., & Miao, H. (2018). Age exerts a continuous effect in the outcomes of Asian breast cancer patients treated with breast-conserving therapy. Cancer Communications, 38(1), 39. Doi: 10.1186/s40880-018-0310-3
- 233. Wurjine, T., Menji, Z., & Bogale, N. (2019). Assessment of knowledge, attitude and practice towards breast cancer early detection methods among female health professionals at public health centers of Addis Ababa, Ethiopia, 2017. Women's Health, 8(3), 201-2019. Doi: 10.15406/mojwh.2019.08.00237

- 234. Yılmaz, M., & Gürler, H. (2020). The Relationship between Body Image and Sexuality after Surgical Treatment in Women with Breast Cancer. Journal of Education and Research in Nursing. Doi: 10.5222/head.2020.55751
- 235. Zain, N., Vilashni, A., Dore Lim, M., & Chelliah, K. (2016). Association of Bone Mineral Density to Breast Density as Predictors of Breast Cancer. Advanced Science Letters, 22(12), 3988-3990. Doi: 10.1166/asl.2016.8089
- 236. Zakaria, S., Mustafa, Y., Mohammed, D., Ali, S., Al-Ansari, N., & Knutsson, S. (2013). Estimation of annual harvested runoff at Sulaymaniyah Governorate, north of Iraq. Natural Science, 05(12), 1272-1283. Doi: 10.4236/ns.2013.512155.
- 237. Zhang, B. N., Cao, X. C., Chen, J. Y., Chen, J., Fu, L., Hu, X. C., Jiang, Z. F., Li, H. Y., Liao, N., Liu, D. G., Tao, O., Shao, Z. M., Sun, Q., Wang, S., Wang, Y. S., Xu, B. H., & Zhang, J. (2012). Guidelines on the diagnosis and treatment of breast cancer (2011 edition). Gland surgery, 1(1), 39–61. https://doi.org/10.3978/j.issn.2227-684X.2012.04.07
- 238. Zoon, C., Starker, E., Wilson, A., Emmert-Buck, M., Libutti, S., & Tangrea, M. (2009). Current molecular diagnostics of breast cancer and the potential incorporation of microRNA. Expert Rev Mol Diagn, 9(5), 455–467.
- 239. Zorogastua, K., Sriphanlop, P., Reich, A., Aly, S., Cisse A., & Jandorf. L. (2017). Breast and cervical cancer screening among U.S. and non-U.S. born African American Muslim women in New York City, AIMS Public Health, 4(1), 78-93. https://doi.org/10.3934/publichealth.2017.1.78

APPENDIX A.

KARABUK UNIVERSITY ETHICAL COMMITTEE APPROVAL FORM



KARABÜK ÜNİVERSİTESİ REKTÖRLÜĞÜ Girişimsel Olmayan Klinik Araştırmalar Etik Kurulu

Sayı: 77192459-050.01.04-E.11637 Konu: 199 Nolu Etik Kurul Kararı

05/03/2020

Sayın Doç. Dr. Işıl IŞIK ANDSOY

Girişimsel Olmayan Klinik Araştırmalar Etik Kurulumuza sunmuş olduğunuz "IRAKLI KADINLARIN MEME KANSERİ, RİSK FAKTÖRLERİ VE TARAMAYA YÖNELİK BİLGİ, TUTUM VE UYGULAMALARI" başlıklı araştırma projeniz amaç, gerekçe, yaklaşım ve yöntemle ilgili açıklamaları açısından Girişimsel Olmayan Etik Kurulu yönergesine göre incelenmiştir. Etik açıdan bir sakınca olmadığına oy çokluğu ile karar verilmiş ve uygun görülmetik. görülmüştür. Bilgilerinize rica ederim.

e-imzalıdır Dr. Öğr.Üyesi Zafer LİMAN Kurul Başkanı

Bilgi için: Simge ACAR TURGUT Unvanı: Sürekli İşçi

Adres:Karabûk Üniversitesi Demir Çelik Kampûsû Merkez/Karabûk Bilgi için: Simge ACAF Telefon;(370) 418 9446 Unvanı: e-Posta;griofetik@karabûk.edu.tr Elektronik Ağ:http://tip.karabûk.edu.tr/giroletik
Bu belge 5070 sayılı Elektronik İmza Kanununun 5. Maddesi gereğince güvenli elektronik imza ile imzalanmıştır.

APPENDIX B.

SULAYMANIYAH GENERAL DIRECTORATE OF HEALTH FORMAL ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL

اقليم كوردستان – العراق مجلس الوزراء وزارة الصحة المديرية العامة لصحة السليمانية التخطيط و التطوير الصحى

الشعبة البحث العلمى



Kurdistan Regional Government Council of Ministers Ministry of Health هاریمی کوردستان – عیراق نامنجومانی وهزیران وهزارهتی تامندروستی باویودبارایاتی گشتی تامندروستی سلیمانی باشی پلان و گامشامپیدانی تامندروستی هذیهی تویژیناودی زانستی

No: /2006 Date: 9 // 7 / 2020

ژماره / ریکاوت/ / ۲۰۲۰

Subject/ Proposal approval

KARABUK UNIVERSITY RECTORATE

Ethical code: 3

This is to confirm that the Sulaymaniyah Directorate of Health/Ethical committee has approved the proposal of master student (Shadan Shkur Aziz) under the title (Knowledge, Attitude and Practice toward Breast Cancer Among Iraqi Women) with a condition that the project in a accordance with the tenets of the Helsinki declaration and the national ethical guideline for medical research.

Approval is guaranteed of the conditions outline below

- 1- Approval is given for one year project which have note commenced with one year of original approval must be resubmitted the ethics committee
- 2- Prior approval from ethics committee is recurred before implementing any changes in the consent documents or any changes in the protocol unless those changes are required urgently for subjects.
- 3- Student must complete and return report from when the research is completed TATE

APPENDIX C.

QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

SECTION 1. Socio-demographic Properties	
1. Age	
2. Education	☐ No formal education
	☐ Primary-Secondary
	☐ High School
	☐ University or above
3. Level of Education	☐ Employees
	☐ Retired
	☐ Housewife
4. Ethnic	□Kurdish
	□Arabic
	□Turkmen
5. Marital status	☐ Married
	☐ Single
6. Economical situation	□ Low
	□ High
7. Marriage age	□ <18
	□ 18-30
	□ >30
8. Presence of child	□ None
	☐ Less than 3
9. Age of first birth	☐ 4 and above ☐ <18
7. Fige of hist offth	□ 18-30
	□ >30
10. Contraction	
10. Contraceptive use	□ Yes
	□ No
11. Exercise	□ Never
	□ Sometimes
	☐ Once a week
	☐ Three times a week
12. Nutrition	☐ Many fruits and vegetables
	☐ Low fiber, high protein and fat
13. Breastfeeding	
	□ No
14. Smoke cigarettes	
	□ No
15. Age first menstrual period	□<11
	□>11
16. Family history of breast cancer	□ Yes
	\square No

17.	Previous breast problems	☐ Yes		
		□ No		
18.	Have you heard about breast cancer?	□ Yes		
		□ No		
19.	If yes, from which source did you learn your	Media	es 🗆 No	
	information about breast cancer?	Friends \(\sum \text{Y}\epsilon	es 🗆 No	
		Health care provider	es 🗆 No	
		Conference+ Seminar ☐ Ye	es 🗆 No	
SECTIO	ON 2. Information of women about Breast Cancer a	nd Risk Factors	Yes	No
Breast c	ancer			
1.	Breast cancer is the most common cancer in women wo	rldwide		
2.	Breast cancer can be treated			
3.	Breast cancer can be treated if detected at an early stage)		
4.	Early diagnosis of breast cancer is the best chance t effective treatment	o control the disease and provides		
5.	Seeking medical attention for breast changes, regular b	reast control is essential for success		
6.	in treating breast cancer Breast cancer can affect elderly and young women			
7.	Breast cancer can affect women of all races			
8.	Breast cancer can affect women of all economic classes			
9.	Breast cancer is not an infectious disease			
10.	10. Participation in breast cancer screening may reduce the risk of death from breast cancer			
Risk fac	tors			
11.	Breast cancer risk increases with age			
12.	Women with family history of breast cancer have a risk	of developing breast cancer		
13.	An unhealthy lifestyle is a risk factor for breast cancer			
14.	Increased risk of breast cancer in women who have nev	er given birth		
15.	Late menopause (over 55 years of age) increases the ris	k of breast cancer		
16.	Early menarche (under 11) increases the risk of breast c	rancer		
17.	Removing ovaries in women reduces the risk of breast of	cancer		
18.	Obesity increases the risk of breast cancer in the post-m	nenopausal period		
19.	Exposure to radiation at a young age in women may in	acrease the risk of BC		
20.	Estrogen increases the risk of breast cancer			
21.	No alcohol use, healthy nutrition, healthy weight, regular avoiding exposure to radiation and environmental pollubreast cancer			
22.	Swelling of the whole or part of the breast, darkening of breast or nipple pain, nipple retraction (inward rotation) thickening, nipple discharge, size or changes in the form	, nipple skin red, dry, flaking or		
SECTIO	ON 3. Information on Breast Cancer Screening Met	hods		
Informa	tion on Breast self-examination			
	Breast cancer screening self-examination, clinical breast performed needs to be done	examination and mammography are	Yes 🗆	No 🗆

2.	Self-breast examination should start at the age of 20 and sl	hould be performed once a month.		
			Yes 🗆	No 🗆
3.	The best time to perform a breast self-examination is 3 to menstruation.	5 days after the end of	Yes 🗆	No 🗆
4.	Self-breast examination is manual examination of breasts position	Yes 🗆	No 🗆	
5.	The position of lying in front of the mirror is started, the c from the nipple are controlled from the point of view of all		Yes 🗆	No 🗆
6.	If there is a mass recovered during the examination, the ph		Yes 🗆	No 🗆
Inform	ation on Clinical Breast Examination			
1.	Clinical Breast Examination is a manual examination me	thod performed by the physician.	Yes 🗆	No 🗆
2.	Clinical breast examination is performed every 3 years be	etween the ages of 20-39	Yes 🗆	No 🗆
3.	Clinical breast examination is performed once a year after	r the age of 40	Yes 🗆	No 🗆
Inform	ation on Mammography			
1.	Mammography is the method used in the early diagnosis of	f breast cancer.	Yes 🗆	No 🗆
2.	Mammography is a method used for imaging the breast us	ing a low dose × ray of the breast	Yes 🗆	No 🗆
3.	Women without risk factors for breast cancer should under 40	rgo a mammography scan after age	Yes 🗆	No 🗆
4.	Mammography should start every two years until the age of the age of 50.	of 50 and be done once a year after	Yes 🗆	No 🗆
SECTI	ON 4. Practice of women toward Breast Cancer Screen	ing		
Breast	Self-Examination			
1.	Do you have information about breast self-examination?	Yes No		
3.	Have you been get information about performing BSE?	Yes □ No □		
4.	If yes, source	☐ Family		
		□ Doctor		
		□ Nurse		
		☐ Friend		
5.	Do you practice BSE?	Yes □ No □		
6.	If yes;	□ Regular		
		☐ Irregular ☐ As I think about it		
7.	If No, reason	☐ I'm afraid to discover a tumor.		
		☐ I don't have a breast complain	t.	
		☐ I don't have the time.☐ I don't have enough information	n n	
		1 don't have chough information	<i>J</i> 11.	
	l Breast Examination	V N		
1.	Have you ever heard a clinical breast exam?	Yes No No		
2.	If yes, source	☐ Media		
		Friends		
		☐ Health workers		
3.	Have you ever had a clinical breast examination?	Yes No		
4.	If yes, when	☐ In the last 2 years		
		☐ In the last 5 years		
		☐ I don't remember		

5.	If no, reason	☐ Nobody suggests		
		☐ I'm afraid of the procedure and the bad results		
		☐ I didn't find it necessary.		
		☐ I didn't have any complaints.		
		☐ I was afraid of pain and discomfort.		
Mammo	ography			
1.	Do you have information about mammography?	Yes No		
2.	If yes, source	☐ Media		
		☐ Friends		
		☐ Health care provider		
3.	Have you ever had a mammography?	Yes No		
4.	If Yes, when	☐ In the last 2 years		
		☐ In the last 5 years		
		☐ I don't remember		
5.	If No, reason	☐ Mammography cannot be accessed		
		☐ I'm afraid of the procedure and the bad results		
		☐ I didn't find it necessary.		
		☐ I didn't have any complaints.		
		□ Ashamed		

Factor 1:Exposure Barriers	Strongly agree	Agree	Somewhat	Disagree	Strongly
	(1)	(2)	agree (3)	(4)	disagree (5)
A male physician examining my breast embarrasses me.					
A female physician examining my breast embarrasses me.					
3. Body exposure is forbidden by religion.					
4. I fear being seen at the clinic.					
Factor 2: Social Barriers					
1. Fear pity by others.					
2. Fear disrespect by my family.					
3. Fear losing my job.					
Fear my husband's detachment, resentment.					
5. Fear neglecting by my family.					
6. Fear losing my friends.					

Factor :	3: Religious beliefs concerning			
cancer				
1.	Cancer is a way of punishment by God.			
2.	Cancer is a way of atonement for bad deeds by God.			
3.	Cancer is a trial by God.			
4.	Reading religious writings assists healing.			
Factor 4	4: Environmental barriers			
1.	Language and communication.			
2.	Distance and accessibility of the clinic.			
3.	Cost of the examinations.			
Factor 5	5: Uneasiness with own body			
1.	I feel embarrassed looking at my body.			
2.	I feel embarrassed touching my body.			
3.	I have no privacy to examine my body.			
4.	I do not know my body sufficiently to recognize changes in it.			

RESUME

Shadan Shkur Azeez was born in Iraq. She has achived her primary and secondary degrees in the same governorate. She has studied and achieved high school certificate at Zahra High School in Erbil governorate. Then she started undergraduate program and obtained her bachelor degree in Sulaimani University, Department of Nursing in 2016. She started working as a Nurse in Faruk Medical City in Sulaimani in 2018. To complete M. Sc. education, she moved to Karabük University.